# La Sierra Military Academy Annual Notification to Parents/Guardians 2025-2026

# **Contents**

ABSENCES	3
Excused Absences	3
Absences for Religious Purposes	3
ATTENDANCE	
Residency Requirements	
Temporary Disability	
Students in Active Military Families - Residency Retention and Matriculation	
Migratory Children - Residency Retention and Matriculation	
Immigration Enforcement - "Know Your Rights"	
Notice of Alternative Schools	
Transfer of Student Convicted of Violent Felony or Misdemeanor	
Transfer of Victims of Bullying	
COMPLAINTS	
Uniform Complaint Procedures	
±	
Uniform Complaint Procedures - Specific Complaints	
Special Education Program Complaints	
Child Nutrition Program Complaints	
Lactation Accommodations for Parenting Students	
Pregnant and Parenting Student Rights	
Williams Complaint Procedures	
Nondiscrimination	
Sexual Harassment Policy and Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures	
DISCIPLINE	
Rules; School Discipline	
Required Parental Attendance	
FACILITIES AND SAFETY	
Management Plan for Asbestos-Containing Material	
Use of Pesticide Products	
Firearm Safety and Safe Storage of Firearms Information	14
HEALTH & IMMUNIZATIONS	15
Administration of Prescribed Medication	15
Administration of Anti-Seizure Medication	15
Inhaled Asthma Medication	15
Physical Examination Exemptions	16
Medical & Hospital Services for Students	16
Mental Health Services for Students	16
Immunizations and Control of Communicable Disease	16
Cancer Prevention Act/Human Papillomavirus Immunization	
Child Nutrition; School Meals	
INSTRUCTION	
Minimum and Staff Development Days	
Career Counseling and Course Selection	
Right to Refrain From the Harmful or Destructive Use of Animals	
Special Education	
Excuse from Health Instruction Based on Religious and Moral Grounds	
Comprehensive Sexual Health Education and HIV/AIDS Prevention	
Student Surveys, Tests, and Questionnaires Regarding Beliefs and Practices	
California Assessment of Student Performance & Progress (CAASPP)	
<u> </u>	ュフ

Notification of Potential Failing Grade	
Teacher and Paraprofessional Qualifications	
Language Acquisition Programs	20
Educational Rights of High Mobility High School Students	20
California College Guidance Initiative Data Sharing	
RECORDS	21
Student Records Policy	21
Parent Access to Records	
Curriculum Review	
Student Records Review	
Parental Consent to Release Student Information; No Parental Consent to	
Information	23
Transfer of Student Records	
Student Records Complaints	
HIGH SCHOOL ONLY	
College Admission Requirements/Career Technical Education	
Cal Grant Program / Student Opt-Out	

#### **ABSENCES**

# Excused Absences (Ed. Code §§ 46010.1, 48200, 48205, 48980)

Except when attendance is excused, students between the ages of 6 and 18 years are required by law to attend school and parents must compel their students to do so. Students will be excused from school for the following reasons:

- (1) Illness of the student, including an absence for the benefit of the student's mental or behavioral health.
- (2) Quarantine under the direction of a county or city health officer.
- (3) Securing medical, dental, optometric, or chiropractic services.
- (4) Attendance of funeral services or grieving the death of a member of the student's immediate family or a person determined by the student's parent or guardian to be in such close association with the student as to be considered the student's immediate family, so long as the absence is not more than three days.
- (5) Seeking and assessing victim, grief, or other support services related to the death of an immediate family member or a person determined by the student's parent or guardian to be in such close association with the student as to be considered the student's immediate family, so long as such absence is not more than three days.
- (6) Jury duty.
- (7) Illness or medical appointment during school hours of a child of whom the student is the custodial parent, including absences to care for a sick child for which the school staff shall not require a note from a doctor.
- (8) For justifiable personal reasons, including, but not limited to, an attendance or appearance in court, attendance at a funeral service, observance of a holiday or ceremony of the student's religion, attendance at religious retreats, attendance at an employment conference, or attendance at an educational conference on the legislative or judicial process offered by a nonprofit organization when the student's absence is requested in writing by the parent and approved by the principal or a designated representative. Attendance at religious retreats cannot exceed one school day per semester.
- (9) Service as a member of a precinct board for an election.
- (10) Spending time with a member of the student's immediate family, who is an active-duty member of the uniformed services, and has been called to duty for, is on leave from, or has immediately returned from, deployment; such absences will be granted for a period of time to be determined at the discretion of the Superintendent.
- (11) Attendance of the student's naturalization ceremony to become a United States citizen.
- (12) For the purpose of participating in a cultural ceremony or event. "Cultural" means relating to the habits, practices, beliefs, and traditions of a certain group of people.
- (13) Obtaining confidential medical services without parental consent.
- (14) For the purpose of engaging in a civic or political event, provided that the student is in middle school or high school and notifies the school ahead of the absence. A student may be excused for only one school day, long absence per school year for this purpose, unless the school administrator permits additional excused absences.
- (15) Participating in military entrance processing.

A student may not have their grade reduced or lose academic credit for any excused absence(s) if missed assignments and tests that can reasonably be provided are satisfactorily completed within a reasonable period of time.

With parent written consent, a student may be excused from school to attend religious exercises or classes away from school. Such absences may not exceed four days per month. An excused student must nevertheless maintain his or her attendance at the minimum level of school days required for his or her grade.

# **ATTENDANCE**

# Attendance Options (Ed. Code §§ 35160.5, 46600 et seq., 48350 et seq., 48980)

California law requires all school boards to inform parents of all existing statutory attendance options and local attendance options available in the District. Students who attend schools other than those assigned by the District are referred to as "transfer students" throughout this Notice.

**Open Enrollment.** Whenever a student is attending a District school on the Open Enrollment List, as identified by the Superintendent of Public Instruction, he or she may apply to transfer to another school within or outside of the District, if the school to which he or she is transferring has a higher Academic Performance Index. Districts with a school on the Open Enrollment List must notify the parents at that school on or before the first day of the school year of their option to transfer to another public school. Information regarding the application process and applicable deadlines can be obtained from the District office. See Appendix for the District's policy on Open Enrollment. La Sierra is a non-sectarian, not for profit, public school that does not discriminate against any pupil on the basis of race, religion, gender or disability. We admit children from seventh through twelfth grade. If the number of pupils who wish to attend the charter school exceeds the school's capacity, attendance, except for existing pupils of the charter school, shall be determined by a public random drawing (Education Code 47605) (B)(C). Preference shall be extended to pupils currently attending the charter school and pupils who reside in the district except as provided for in Section 47614.5. Other preferences may be permitted by the chartering authority on an individual school basis and only if consistent with the law.

Intradistrict Transfers. Any student in California may attend La Sierra Military Academy. Preference will be given to the students who currently live in the county whose parents are interested in a highly-disciplined school environment and where students' past performance indicate success at La Sierra. Preferences shall be extended to students currently attending the charter school and their siblings. Tuition is free.

Interdistrict Transfers. California law allows two or more school districts to enter into an agreement for the transfer of one or more students for a period of up to five years. New agreements may be entered into for additional periods of up to five years each. The agreement must specify the terms and conditions under which transfers are permitted or denied. Districts of residence may not deny a transfer of a student whose parent is active-duty military where the district of proposed enrollment approves the application. No district is required to provide transportation to a student who transfers into the district. If either district denies a transfer request, a parent may appeal that decision to the county board of education within 30 calendar days from the date of the final denial. There are specified timelines in the law for the county board of education to make a decision. See Appendix for the District's policy on Interdistrict Transfers. Once capacity has been reached a wait list is developed for lottery. In the event of a drawing, the Board shall make reasonable efforts to accommodate the growth of the charter school and shall not take any action to impede the charter school from expanding enrollment to meet student demand. (Education Code 47605). If there are more students than seats available, students that are currently attending and their siblings will be exempt from the lottery. Each grade level will be maintained daily and notifications to prospective students will be made upon seats

available. Wait lists are live- meaning they are active as names continue to be added and accepted. Upon availability of open seats, a lottery will be held from the wait list. Prospective Parents/guardians will be notified of the lottery and status within one week of the drawing via email or phone call. Parents must confirm their status.

Residency Requirements (Ed. Code §§ 48200, 48204, 48204.3, 48204.4, 48206.3, 48207, 48208, 48853.5, 48980)

The District desires to admit all students who reside within the District boundaries or who fulfill the District residency requirements through other means as allowed by law. A student shall be deemed to have complied with the District's residency requirements if any of the following are met:

**Residency.** The student's parent or legal guardian resides within the District's boundaries.

Children of Military Service Members. The student's parent or legal guardian is transferred or is pending transfer to a military installation within the state while on active military duty pursuant to an official military order. The District must accept applications by electronic means for enrollment, including enrollment in a specific school or program within the District, and for course registration. The parent must provide proof of residency in the District within 10 days after the published arrival date provided on official documentation.

Licensed Children's Institution, Foster Home, or Family Home. The student is placed within the District's boundaries in a regularly established licensed children's institution, a licensed foster home, or a family home pursuant to court order.

**Foster Children.** The student is a foster child who remains in his or her school of origin. When a student's foster student status is terminated by the juvenile court during the school year, former foster students in grades K through eighth must be allowed to finish the school year in his or her school of origin. Former foster students in grades ninth through twelfth must be allowed to continue attending their schools of origin through graduation.

**Interdistrict Attendance.** The student has been admitting through an interdistrict attendance option, such as an interdistrict attendance agreement, or Open Enrollment Act transfer.

**Emancipated Minor.** The student resides within the District's boundaries and whose parent or legal guardian has been relieved of responsibility, control, and authority through emancipation.

**Caregiving Adult.** The student lives with a caregiving adult within the District's boundaries and the caregiving adult submits an affidavit to that effect.

**State Hospital.** The student resides in a state hospital located within the District's boundaries.

**Parent's Employment.** The student's parent or legal guardian resides outside of the District's boundaries but is employed within the District's boundaries and lives with the student at the place of employment for a minimum of three days during the school week.

The District may deem a student to have met residency requirements for school attendance if at least one parent or legal guardian of the student is physically employed within the boundaries of that district for a minimum of 10 hours during the school week, subject to the right of the district of residence or the district of employment to prohibit the transfer on various grounds provided for in Education Code section 48204(b), paragraphs (2) to (6). The District is not required to admit the student to its school based on the employment of the parent, but it may not refuse to admit the student

on the basis of race, ethnicity, sex, parental income, scholastic achievement, or any other arbitrary consideration. Once a student has been deemed to have residency and is enrolled in the District on this basis, the student does not have to reapply in the next school year to attend a school within the District, and the governing board shall allow the student to attend school through the 12th grade in the District if the parent so chooses and if at least one parent continues to be physically employed in the District.

Students of Detained or Deported Parents. The student's parent has departed California against his or her will, and the student can provide official documentation evidencing the departure; and the student moved outside of California as a result of his or her parent leaving the state against his or her will, and the student lived in California immediately before moving outside the state. The student must provide evidence of enrollment in a California public school immediately before moving outside the state. Deported parents may designate another adult to attend school meetings and to serve as an emergency contact. No charges or fees of any kind may be required for admission or attendance in these circumstances. This law applies to parents who were: (1) in the custody of a government agency and were transferred to another state; (2) subject to a lawful removal order and who were removed or were permitted to leave California voluntarily before being removed; and (3) subject to any additional circumstances consistent with these purposes, as determined by the District.

#### Temporary Disability (Ed. Code §§ 48206.3, 48207, 48207.3, 48208, 48980)

A student whose temporary disability makes school attendance impossible or inadvisable must receive individual instruction either at home provided by the school district in which the student resides or in a hospital or other residential health facility, excluding state hospitals, provided by the school district in which the hospital or residential facility is located. "Temporary disability" means a physical, mental or emotional disability incurred while a student is enrolled in regular day classes or an alternative education program to which the student can reasonably be expected to return. "Temporary disability" does not include a disability that would qualify a student as a "student with exceptional needs" under Education Code section 56026.

A student with a temporary disability, who is in a hospital or other residential health facility, excluding a state hospital, located outside of the district in which the student's parent resides, complies with the school district's residency requirements for school attendance in the school district in which the hospital is located. Once the parent has notified the district in which the hospital is located of the student's presence in the qualifying hospital, the district has five working days to notify the parent if individualized instruction shall be made available. If the determination is positive, individualized instruction will begin within five working days.

Students enrolled in individual instruction in a hospital or other residential health facility for a partial week, are entitled to attend school in his or her school district of residence, or to receive individual instruction provided by the school district of residence in the student's home, on days in which he or she is not receiving individual instruction in a hospital or other residential health facility, if he or she is well enough to do so.

When a student receiving individual instruction is well enough to return to school, he or she must be allowed to return to the school that he or she attended immediately before receiving individual instruction was initiated. Absences from the student's regular school program due to the student's temporary disability are excused until the student is able to return to the regular school program.

Students in Active Military Families - Residency Retention and Matriculation (Ed. Code §§ 48204.6, 48980)

A student living in the household of an active-duty military service member must be allowed to continue attending the student's school of origin for the remainder of the school year if the family moves.

A student from an active-duty military family who is transitioning between school grade levels must be allowed to continue in the school district of origin and in the same attendance area of his/her school of origin. If the student is transitioning to middle school or high school, and the school designated for matriculation is in another school district, the local educational agency must allow the student to continue to the school designated for matriculation in that school district. The new school must immediately enroll the student, even if the child has outstanding fees, fines, textbooks, or other items or moneys due to the school last attended, or if the student is unable to produce clothing or records normally required for enrollment.

If the parent or legal guardian's military service ends during the school year, then the student is allowed to stay in his or her school of origin for the remainder of the school year if he or she is in grades 1-8, or through graduation if the student is in high school.

# Migratory Children - Residency Retention and Matriculation (Ed. Code §§ 48204.7, 54441)

A currently migratory child is a child who has moved from one school district to another in order that the child, parent, or immediate family member might secure temporary or seasonal employment in an agricultural or fishing activity.

A currently migratory child must be allowed to continue attending the student's school of origin, regardless of any change of resident during that school year, for the duration of the student's status as a currently migratory child.

A currently migratory child who is transitioning between school grade levels must be allowed to continue in the school district of origin and in the same attendance area of his/her school of origin. If the student is transitioning to middle school or high school, and the school designated for matriculation is in another school district, the local educational agency must allow the student to continue to the school designated for matriculation in that school district. The new school must immediately enroll the student, even if the child has outstanding fees, fines, textbooks, or other items or moneys due to the school last attended, or if the student is unable to produce clothing or records normally required for enrollment.

If the student's status as a currently migratory child ends during the school year, then the student is allowed to stay in his or her school of origin for the remainder of the school year if he or she is in grades 1-8, or through graduation if the student is in high school.

#### **Immigration Enforcement - "Know Your Rights" (Ed. Code § 234.7)**

All students have the right to a free public education, regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs. For more information, please see the resources developed by the California Attorney General at <a href="https://www.oag.ca.gov/immigrant/rights">https://www.oag.ca.gov/immigrant/rights</a>.

#### Notice of Alternative Schools (Ed. Code § 58501)

California state law authorizes all school districts to provide for alternative schools. Section 58500 of the Education Code defines alternative school as a school or separate class group within a school which is operated in a manner designed to:

- (1) Maximize the opportunity for students to develop the positive values of self-reliance, initiative, kindness, spontaneity, resourcefulness, courage, creativity, responsibility, and joy.
- (2) Recognize that the best learning takes place when the student learns because of his desire to learn.
- (3) Maintain a learning situation maximizing student self-motivation and encouraging the student in his own time to follow his own interests. These interests may be conceived by him totally and independently or may result in whole or in part from a presentation by his teachers of choices of learning projects.
- (4) Maximize the opportunity for teachers, parents and students to cooperatively develop the learning process and its subject matter. This opportunity shall be a continuous, permanent process.
- (5) Maximize the opportunity for the students, teachers, and parents to continuously react to the changing world, including but not limited to the community in which the school is located.

In the event any parent, student, or teacher is interested in further information concerning alternative schools, the county superintendent of schools, the administrative office of this district, and the principal's office in each attendance unit have copies of the law available for your information. This law particularly authorizes interested persons to request the governing board of the district to establish alternative school programs in each district.

# Transfer of Student Convicted of Violent Felony or Misdemeanor (Ed. Code §§ 48929, 48980)

The District's governing board has adopted Board Policy 5116.2 that allows for the transfer of students who have been convicted of violent felonies and designated misdemeanors to another school within the District if the offending student and the victim of the crime are enrolled at the same school, if certain requirements are satisfied.

## Transfer of Victims of Bullying (Ed. Code § 46600)

School districts must approve the request of a bullying victim, as defined, to transfer to another school within the district. If the requested school is at capacity, the school district must accept a request for an alternate site. If the school district of residence has only one school available, the school district of residence must honor the student's interdistrict transfer request if the school district of proposed enrollment approves the transfer.

#### **COMPLAINTS**

#### Uniform Complaint Procedures (Ed. Code §§ 262.3, 33315; 5 C.C.R. §§ 4610, 4622, 4632)

The District has established Uniform Complaint Procedures ("UCP") to address allegations of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying, and complaints alleging violation of state or federal laws governing educational programs, the charging of unlawful pupil fees, and the noncompliance of the District's Local Control and Accountability Plan. See Appendix for the District's UCP. The La Sierra Uniform Complaint Document can be found in the Appendix section of this handout.

The UCP addresses all allegations of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying against any protected group as identified in Education Code section 200 and 220, and Government Code section 11135, including any actual or perceived characteristics as set forth in Penal Code section 422.55 or on the basis of a person's association with a person or group with one or more

of these actual or perceived characteristics in any program or activity conducted by the District that if funded directly by, or that receives or benefits from any state financial assistance. The UCP shall also be used when addressing complaints alleging failure to comply with state and/or federal laws in:

- Adult Education
- After School Education and Safety
- Agricultural Career Technical Education
- American Indian Education Centers and Early Childhood Education Program Assessments
- Bilingual Education
- California Peer Assistance and Review Programs for Teachers
- Career Technical and Technical Education; Career Technical; Technical Training
- Career Technical Education
- Child Care and Development
- Compensatory Education
- Consolidated Categorical Aid
- Course Periods Without Educational Content
- Economic Impact Aid
- Education of Students in Foster Care, Students Who Are Homeless, Former Juvenile Court Students Now Enrolled in a School District, and Children of Military Families
- Every Student Succeeds/No Child Left Behind
- Local Control Accountability Plans
- Migrant Education
- Physical Education Instructional Minutes
- Pupil Fees
- Reasonable Accommodations to a Lactating Student
- Regional Occupational Centers and Programs
- School Safety Plans
- State Preschool Health and Safety Issues
- Tobacco-Use Prevention Education
- Discriminatory Instructional Materials and Curricula
- Discrimination related to the refusal to approve the use or prohibit the use of any textbook, instructional material, supplemental instructional material, or other curriculum for classroom instruction or any book or other resource in a school library on the basis that it includes a study of the role and contributions of any individual or group consistent with the requirements of Education Code sections 51204.5 and 60040, unless the study of the role and contributions violates Education Code section 51501 or 60044.

The Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources (Dedi Somavia) from the Tulare County Office of Education shall receive and investigate complaints submitted under the District's UCP and ensure District compliance with the law. For more information concerning the filing of uniform complaints, copies of the Board Policies and Administrative Regulations pertaining to the District's UCP are available free of charge upon request at the school office.

Except for complaints submitted under the District's Williams Complaint Procedures, a complainant may appeal a decision made under the District's UCP to the California Department of Education by filing a written appeal within 30 days of receiving the decision. The appeal must be accompanied by a copy of the complaint filed with the District and a copy of the District's decision.

A complainant may pursue available civil law remedies outside of the District's UCP. Civil law remedies that may be imposed by a court include, but are not limited to, injunctions, restraining orders, or other remedies or orders that may be available under state or federal discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying laws, if applicable.

Uniform Complaint Procedures - Specific Complaints (Ed. Code §§ 48853, 48853.5, 49010, 49011, 49013, 49069.5, 51225.2, 52075; 5 C.C.R. § 4630)

Complaints alleging non-compliance with specific state laws identified below may be submitted under the District's UCP. If a complainant is not satisfied with the District's decision, the complainant may appeal to the California Department of Education and will receive a written decision within 60 days.

**Pupil Fees.** A pupil enrolled in a public school shall not be required to pay a pupil fee for participation in an educational activity. A pupil fee includes, but is not limited to, all of the following: (1) a fee charged to a pupil as a condition for registering for school or classes, or as a condition for participation in a class or an extracurricular activity, regardless of whether the class or activity is elective or compulsory, or is for credit; (2) a security deposit, or other payment, that a pupil is required to make to obtain a lock, locker, book, class apparatus, musical instrument, clothes, or other materials or equipment; and (3) a purchase that a pupil is required to make to obtain materials, supplies, equipment, or clothes associated with an educational activity. A complaint alleging the imposition of pupil fees for participation in educational activities may be filed with the school's principal under the UCP not later than one year from the date the alleged violation occurred. A complaint may be filed anonymously if the complainant provides evidence or information leading to evidence to support the complaint.

Local Control Accountability Plan. School districts, charter schools and county offices of education are required to adopt and annually update their Local Control Accountability Plans ("LCAPs"). A complaint alleging noncompliance with the LCAP may be filed under the District's UCP and may be filed anonymously. A complaint may be filed anonymously if the complainant provides evidence or information leading to evidence to support the complaint.

Graduation and Coursework Requirements for Foster Youth, Homeless Students, Former Juvenile Court Students, Students Living in Active-Duty Military Households, and Migratory and Newly Arrived Immigrant Students Participating in a "Newcomer Program." State law outlines the rights afforded to students in foster care, who are homeless, who are former juvenile court school students, students living in the household of a parent who is an active duty member of the military, and migratory and newly arrived immigrant students participating in a "Newcomer Program," which is a program designed to meet the academic and transitional needs of newly arrived immigrant students including, but not limited to, rights regarding a student's school of origin, enrollment, credits, graduation, college, discipline, records, and/or certain non-educational rights. A notice summarizing the rights of foster youth is available online through the California Department of Education at http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/pf/fy/documents/fosteryouthrights.pdf.

#### Special Education Program Complaints (5 C.C.R. §§ 3200-3205)

Complaints regarding special education programs are no longer covered by the District's Uniform Complaint Procedures. Please refer to the Notice of Procedural Safeguards, Special Education Rights or Parents and Children under the IDEA and the California Education Code, which is available from your child's school or may be accessed here: https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se/qa/pssummary.asp, for more information about filing a complaint.

Complaints alleging that a student was discriminated against due to his or her disability still fall under the Uniform Complaint Procedures.

#### Child Nutrition Program Complaints (5 C.C.R. §§ 15580-15584)

Complaints related to Child Nutrition Programs established pursuant to the National School Lunch Program, Summer Food Service Program, Child and Adult Care Food Program, Special Milk Program, School Breakfast Program, and Food Distribution Program are no longer processed through the LEA's Uniform Complaint Procedures. Instead, complaints must be processed through the existing procedures outlined in the federal regulations and the new, related state regulations, California Code of Regulations, title 5, sections 15580-15584. A complaint must be submitted within one year of the date of the alleged violation, and may be filed by phone, e-mail, or letter. Please see California Code of Regulations, title 5, sections 15580-15584 for more information.

#### **Lactation Accommodations for Parenting Students (Ed. Code § 222)**

A school operated by a school district or a county office of education, the California School for the Deaf, the California School for the Blind, and a charter school must provide reasonable accommodations to a lactating student on a school campus to express milk, breast-feed an infant child, or address other needs related to breastfeeding. Reasonable accommodations under this section include, but are not limited to, all of the following:

- Access to a private and secure room, other than a restroom, to express breast milk or breast-feed an infant child.
- Permission to bring onto a school campus a breast pump and any other equipment used to express breast milk.
- Access to a power source for a breast pump or any other equipment used to express breast milk.
- Access to a place to store expressed breast milk safely.
- A reasonable amount of time to accommodate the need to express breast milk or breast-feed an infant child.

A student may not incur an academic penalty as a result of her use of reasonable lactation accommodations and must be provided an opportunity to make up any work missed due to such use.

A complaint of noncompliance with the requirements of this provision may be filed under the District's Uniform Complaint Procedures. Complainants not satisfied with the District's decision may appeal the decision to the California Department of Education and receive a written decision within 60 days. If the District finds merit in a complaint, or if the Superintendent finds merit in an appeal, the District will provide a remedy to the affected student.

#### Pregnant and Parenting Student Rights (Ed. Code §§ 221.51, 46015)

The District cannot apply any rule concerning a student's actual or potential parental, family, or marital status that treats students differently on the basis of sex. The District cannot exclude or deny any student from any educational program or activity, including class or extracurricular activity, solely on the basis of the student's pregnancy, childbirth, false pregnancy, termination of pregnancy, or recovery therefrom.

The District may require any student to obtain the certification of a physician or nurse practitioner that the student is physically and emotionally able to continue participation in the regular education program or activity.

Pregnant or parenting students cannot be required to participate in pregnant minor programs or alternative education programs. Pregnant or parenting students who voluntarily participate in alternative education programs will be given educational programs, activities, and courses equal to those they would have been in if participating in the regular education program.

The District must treat pregnancy, childbirth, false pregnancy, termination of pregnancy, and recovery therefrom in the same manner and under the same policies as any other temporary disabling condition.

Pregnant or parenting students are entitled to eight weeks of parental leave, which the student may take before the birth of the student's infant if there is a medical necessity and after childbirth during the school year in which the birth takes place, inclusive of any mandatory summer instruction, in order to protect the health of the student who gives or expects to give birth and the infant, and to allow the pregnant or parenting student to care for and bond with the infant. The student, if the student is 18 years of age or older, or, if the student is under 18 years of age, the person holding the right to make educational decisions for the student, shall notify the school of the student's intent to exercise this right. Failure to notify the school shall not reduce these rights. A pregnant or parenting student who does not wish to take all or part of the parental leave to which he or she is entitled shall not be required to do so. A pregnant or parenting student is entitled to receive more than eight weeks of parental leave if deemed medically necessary by the student's physician.

When a student takes parental leave, the supervisor of attendance shall ensure that absences from the student's regular school program are excused until the student is able to return to the regular school program or an alternative education program. During parental leave, the District shall not require a pregnant or parenting student to complete academic work or other school requirements.

A pregnant or parenting student may return to the school and the course of study in which he or she was enrolled before taking parental leave. Upon return to school after taking parental leave, a pregnant or parenting student is entitled to opportunities to make up work missed during his or her leave, including, but not limited to, makeup work plans and reenrollment in courses.

Notwithstanding any other law, a pregnant or parenting student may remain enrolled for a fifth year of instruction in the school in which the student was previously enrolled when it is necessary in order for the student to be able to complete state and any local graduation requirements, unless the District makes a finding that the student is reasonably able to complete the District's graduation requirements in time to graduate from high school by the end of the student's fourth year of high school.

A student who chooses not to return to the school in which he or she was enrolled before taking parental leave is entitled to alternative education options offered by the District. A pregnant or parenting student who participates in an alternative education program shall be given educational programs, activities, and courses equal to those he or she would have been in if participating in the regular education program.

A student shall not incur an academic penalty as a result of his or her use of these accommodations. A complaint of noncompliance with these requirements by be filed with the District under its UCP.

Williams Complaint Procedures (Ed. Code § 35186; 5 C.C.R. §§ 4680, 4681)

The District's Williams Complaint Procedures address the sufficiency of instructional materials, emergency or urgent facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health and safety of students or staff, and teacher vacancies or misassignments. Please see the Appendix section for La Sierra Military Academy's Williams Complaint Procedures document. The school principal, or the designee of the Superintendent, shall make all reasonable efforts to investigate complaints submitted under the District's Williams Complaint Procedures.

Nondiscrimination (Ed. Code § 200, 220, 234.1, 48985; 20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1688, 6311-6312; 29 U.S.C. § 794; 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d-d7, 12101-12213; 28 C.F.R. § 35.106; 34 C.F.R. §§ 104.8, 106.8, 106.9)

State and/or federal law prohibit discrimination in the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in federally financed education programs or activities. District programs and activities shall be free from discrimination, including harassment, intimidation, and bullying, based on any of the following actual or perceived characteristics:

- Age
- Ancestry
- Color
- Ethnicity
- Ethnic group identification
- Gender, including a person's gender identity and gender expression, which is a person's gender-related appearance and behavior whether or not stereotypically associated with a person's assigned sex at birth
- Genetic information
- Immigration status
- Lack of English skills
- Marital, family, or parental status
- Nationality or national origin

- Physical or mental disability
- Race
- Religion or religious creed, including agnosticism, atheism, and all aspects of religious belief, observance, and practice
- Sex, including discrimination against a student based on pregnancy, childbirth, false pregnancy, termination of pregnancy or recovery from pregnancy or childbirth-related conditions, or denial of lactation accommodations for lactating students
- Sexual orientation, including heterosexuality, homosexuality, and bisexuality

Harassment, intimidation, or bullying based upon a person's association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics is also prohibited. The District's policy of nondiscrimination applies to all acts related to school activity or school attendance occurring within a school under the jurisdiction of the District, and to all acts of the Governing Board and the Superintendent in enacting policies and procedures that govern the District. Any questions or concerns about noncompliance can be directed to (Dedi Somavia, Assistant Superintendent Human Resources, Tulare County Office of Education). See Appendix for La Sierra Military Academy's policy on Nondiscrimination/Harassment.

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act prohibit discrimination against qualified disabilities individuals in federally financed education programs or activities. The District does not discriminate in admission or access to its programs or activities. In the event of a complaint regarding discrimination based upon an actual or perceived mental or physical disability, please contact the District's Assistant Superintendent of Special Services (Tammy Bradford) at (559) 730-2910.

Sexual Harassment Policy and Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures (Ed. Code § 231.5, 48980; 5 C.C.R. § 4917)

See Appendix for the District's policy on sexual harassment and Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures. Please see the appendix section for La Sierra Military Academy's policy on Sexual Harassment and Title IX policies.

#### **DISCIPLINE**

# Rules; School Discipline (Ed. Code §§ 35291, 48980)

The District's Governing Board has adopted rules and regulations pertaining to student discipline, as it pertains to suspension, dismissal or expulsion which shall be imposed only when (1) a cadet violates Education Code 48900(a)-(e); (2) other means of correction for continued violations of Ed Code have failed to bring about proper conduct; (3) the student's presence causes a danger to themselves or others; and/or (4) as required or permitted by the law. Parents may request a copy of such rules and regulations from the La Sierra Military Academy front office receptionist.

#### Required Parental Attendance (Ed. Code §§ 48900.1, 48914)

Parents may be required to attend their student's class if he or she is suspended for unruly or disruptive conduct.

#### FACILITIES AND SAFETY

#### Management Plan for Asbestos-Containing Material (40 C.F.R. §§ 763.84, 763.93)

The District has, available upon request, a complete and updated management plan for asbestos-containing material.

#### Use of Pesticide Products (Ed. Code §§ 48980.3, 17611.5, 17612)

All schools are required to provide parents with annual notice of expected pesticide use at schools. See Appendix for a List of Pesticide Products, including name of each pesticide product, active ingredient(s) and the Internet address for further information. Please contact La Sierra Military Academy Site Principal (Jose Bedolla) at (559) 733-6963 if you wish to receive written notification at least 72 hours prior to the application of an individual pesticide at your school. Each school will maintain a list of parents who want to be notified before individual pesticide applications are made. Prior to the application of any pesticide, the District will post a warning sign at the area to be treated at least 24 hours prior to the pesticide application and such sign will remain posted for at least 72 hours after the application. In the event of an emergency condition, advance notification and prior sign posting may not be feasible, but a warning sign will be posted immediately upon application of the pesticide.

For additional information regarding pesticides and pesticide use, please visit the Department of Pesticide Regulation's website at www.cdpr.ca.gov. Parents may view a copy of the school's integrated pest management plan at the school site office via the La Sierra Military Academy front office department.

#### Firearm Safety and Safe Storage of Firearms Information (Ed. Code §§ 48986, 49391, 49392)

Beginning with the 2023-2024 school year, school districts are required to include information in their Annual Notices related to the safe storage of firearms and California's child access prevention laws, which establish liability for parents and guardians who should have known that their child could gain access

to a firearm at home. The information included in the Annual Notice must be informed by model content developed by the California Department of Education (CDE). Please see the attachment for this notice in the Appendix section for Memorandum for Safe Firearms Storage.

#### **HEALTH & IMMUNIZATIONS**

#### Administration of Prescribed Medication (Ed. Code §§ 48980, 49423, 49480)

Any student who is required to take, during the regular school day, medication prescribed for him or her by a physician and surgeon or ordered for him or her by a physician assistant, may be assisted by the school nurse or other designated school personnel if the District receives the following: (1) a written statement from the physician and surgeon or physician assistant detailing the name of the medication, method, amount, and time schedules by which the medication is to be taken, and (2) a written statement from the student's parent, indicating the desire that the District assist the student in the matters set forth in the statement of the physician and surgeon or physician assistant. These written statements must be provided at least annually and more frequently if the medication, dosage, frequency of administration, or reason for administration changes.

Any student who is required to take, during the regular school day, medication prescribed for him or her by a physician and surgeon or ordered for him or her by a physician assistant, may carry and self-administer prescription auto-injectable epinephrine if the District receives the following: (1) a written statement from the physician and surgeon or physician assistant detailing the name of the medication, method, amount, and time schedules by which the medication is to be taken, and confirming that the student is able to self-administer auto-injectable epinephrine, and (2) parent written consent to the self-administration, a release for the school nurse or other designated school personnel to consult with the health care provider of the student regarding any questions that may arise with regard to the medication, and an agreement to release the District and school personnel from civil liability if the self-administering student suffers an adverse reaction as a result of self-administering medication. These written statements must be provided at least annually and more frequently if the medication, dosage, frequency of administration, or reason for administration changes. Students may be subject to disciplinary action pursuant to Education Code section 48900 for using auto-injectable epinephrine in a manner other than as prescribed.

Parents of any student on continuing medication for a non-episodic condition must inform the school nurse or other designated certificated school employee of the medication being taken, the current dosage and the name of the supervising physician. With parent consent, the school nurse may communicate with the student's physician and may counsel school personnel regarding the possible effects of the drug, as well as possible behavioral signs and symptoms of adverse side effects, omission, or overdose.

#### Administration of Anti-Seizure Medication (Ed. Code §§ 49468.2, 49468.3)

Parents of a student diagnosed with seizures, a seizure disorder, or epilepsy who has been prescribed an emergency anti-seizure medication may request that their student's school have one or more of its employees receive voluntary training in the administration of the medication in the event that the student suffers a seizure when a school nurse is not available. Upon receipt of the parent's request, the District must notify the parent that their child may qualify for an individualized education program or Section 504 plan. Before an emergency anti-seizure medication or therapy treatment may be administered, the parent must provide a seizure action plan to the District.

Inhaled Asthma Medication (Ed. Code § 49423.1)

Any student who is required to take, during the regular school day, medication prescribed for him or her by a physician or surgeon, may be assisted by the school nurse or other designated personnel if the District receives the following: (1) a written statement from the physician or surgeon detailing the medication name, method, amount, and time schedules by which the medication is to be taken, and (2) a written statement from the student's parent requesting that the District assist the student in the administration of medication set forth in the physician or surgeon's written statement. These written statements must be provided at least annually and more frequently if the medication, dosage, frequency of administration, or reason for administration changes.

Any student who is required to take, during the regular school day, medication prescribed for her or her by a physician or surgeon, may carry and self-administer inhaled asthma medication if the District receives the following: (1) a physician or surgeon's written statement confirming that the child is able to self-administer the medication and detailing the name of the medication, the method, amount and time schedules for administration, and (2) parent written consent to the self-administration, a release for the school nurse or other designated school personnel allowing them to consult with the student's physician, and an agreement to release the District and school personnel from civil liability in the event of an adverse reaction as a result of self-administering medication. These written statements must be provided to the school at least annually or more frequently if the medication, dosage, frequency of, or reason for, the administration changes. Students may be subject to disciplinary action pursuant to Education Code section 48900 for using inhaled asthma medication in a non-prescribed manner.

#### Physical Examination Exemptions (Ed. Code §§ 48980, 49451)

Parents may exempt their student from physical examinations at school by annually filing a written statement with the school principal refusing such an exam. However, when there is a good reason to believe that a student exempted from physical examination is suffering from a recognized contagious or infectious disease, he or she will be sent home and will not be permitted to return to school until school authorities are satisfied that any contagious or infectious disease does not exist.

#### **Medical & Hospital Services for Students (Ed. Code § 49472)**

La Sierra Military Academy does provide or make available medical and/or hospital services for students injured on school grounds, or while being transported to or from any school activity or event. The service shall be provided only with the consent of the parent, or the student if he or she is not a minor. Please contact La Sierra Military Academy regarding such medical service.

# Mental Health Services for Students (Ed. Code § 49428)

Student mental health services are available through the Tulare County Office of Education Behavioral Health Services Department at La Sierra Military Academy via a Mental Wellness Clinician. If a parent is interested in services for their child, please reach out to school administration for additional information regarding the application process.

# Immunizations and Control of Communicable Disease (Ed. Code §§ 49403, 48216, 48980; H. & S. Code §§ 120335, 120370, 120372)

The District cooperates with the local health officer in the control and prevention of communicable diseases in school-age children. If a parent consents in writing, the District may permit any person licensed

as a physician and surgeon, or a health care practitioner (including a physician assistant, nurse practitioner, registered nurse, licensed vocation nurse, or nursing student who is acting under the supervision of a registered nurse as provided by law) who is acting under the direction of a supervising physician and surgeon, to administer an immunizing agent to his/her student.

Students must be immunized against certain diseases before being admitted to school, unless exempted for medical reasons. Students who had a signed waiver based on religious or personal beliefs on file by January 1, 2016 are exempt from the immunizations requirement until they complete the "grade span" they were in as of January 1, 2016. Grade spans are: (1) birth through preschool, (2) Kindergarten through 6th grade, and (3) 7th through 12th grade. Students entering the District for the first time or advancing to 7th grade after January 1, 2016, are no longer exempt from immunizations based on their religious or personal beliefs. Students who had a medical exemption issued before January 1, 2021 will be allowed continued enrollment until they enroll in the next grade span. The District must exclude from school any student who does not supply evidence of inoculation (for any of the diseases listed in Health & Safety Code section 120335), and will notify the parent that he/she has two weeks to supply evidence that the student is immunized.

Students who have a medical exemption issued before December 31, 2020 will be allowed continued enrollment until they enroll in the next grade span. As of January 1, 2021, the District will only accept medical exemptions that are submitted on the California Department of Public Health's standardized, statewide medical exemption certification form.

# Cancer Prevention Act/Human Papillomavirus Immunization (Ed. Code § 48980.4; H. & S. Code § 120336)

HPV, or human papillomavirus, is a common virus that can cause cancers later in life. California law requires that students be advised to adhere to current immunization guidelines, as recommended by the Advisory Committee on Immunization Practices of the federal Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), the American Academy of Pediatrics, and the American Academy of Family Physicians, regarding full HPV immunization before admission or advancement to the eighth grade level of any private or public elementary or secondary school.

Per the CDC, children ages 11-12 years should get two doses of HPV vaccine, given 6 to 12 months apart. HPV vaccines can be given starting at age 9. Children who get the first dose before their 15th birthday only need two doses. Teens who get the first dose on or after their 15th birthday need three doses. The HPV vaccine series is most effective when given before a person is exposed to the virus. More information may be found on the CDC's webpage: <a href="https://www.cdc.gov/hpv/parents/vaccine-for-hpv.html">https://www.cdc.gov/hpv/parents/vaccine-for-hpv.html</a>. HPV vaccination can prevent over 90 percent of cancers caused by HPV. HPV vaccines are very safe, and scientific research shows that the benefits of HPV vaccination far outweigh the potential risks.

# Child Nutrition; School Meals (Ed. Code §§ 49510-49520, 48980)

Parents may apply for participation in the Free and Reduced Lunch Program offered by La Sierra Military Academy to provide nutritious meals to students whose parents qualify, based on annual household income. Information and applications are available through the school office.

#### **INSTRUCTION**

Minimum and Staff Development Days (Ed. Code § 48980)

Please see the Appendix Section for La Sierra Military Academy's pupil-free staff development day and minimum day schedule. A student's parent will be notified during the school year of any additional minimum days or pupil-free staff development days no later than one month before the actual date.

# Career Counseling and Course Selection (Ed. Code § 221.5)

Counselors, teachers, instructors, administrators, and aides may not, on the basis of a student's sex, offer vocational or school program guidance to the student that is different from that offered to a student of the opposite sex in counseling, nor may a counselor differentiate career, vocational, or higher education opportunities on the basis of the sex of the student counseled. Any District personnel acting in a career counseling or course selection capacity shall affirmatively explore with the student the possibility of careers or courses leading to careers that are nontraditional for that student's sex.

# Right to Refrain From the Harmful or Destructive Use of Animals (Ed. Code § 32255 et seq.)

Any student with a moral objection to dissecting, harming, or destroying animals shall notify his/her teacher regarding this objection. An alternative education project may be arranged if the teacher believes the alternative education project can provide the course of study in question. The alternative requires a comparable amount of time and effort, but must not be more arduous than the original project. The District requires a signed note from a parent indicating their child's objection.

#### Special Education (Ed. Code § 56000 et seq.; 20 U.S.C. § 1412; 35 C.F.R. § 300.111)

Students with exceptional needs have a right to a free appropriate public education in the least restrictive environment. The District wants to locate, identify, and assess all children with disabilities whether homeless, wards of the state or enrolled in public or private schools. Parents should inform school officials if they have reason to believe their child has a disability requiring special services or accommodations. The child will be evaluated to determine whether he/she is eligible for free special instruction or services.

#### Excuse from Health Instruction Based on Religious and Moral Grounds (Ed. Code § 51240)

Upon written request of a parent, a student shall be excused from any part of health instruction that conflicts with his/her religious training and beliefs (including personal moral convictions).

# Comprehensive Sexual Health Education and HIV/AIDS Prevention (Ed. Code §§ 51938, 51939, 48980)

A parent has the right to excuse his or her child from all or part of comprehensive sexual health education, HIV/AIDS prevention education, and assessments related to that education, as follows:

A parent may request in writing that his/her student be excused from participating in HIV/AIDS prevention or comprehensive sexual health education. Students so excused by their parent shall be given an alternative educational activity.

Parents may inspect the written and audio-visual educational materials used in comprehensive sexual health education and HIV/AIDS prevention education. Parents have a right to request that the District provide them a copy of Education Code sections 51930-51939.

Every student's parent will be notified prior to the commencement of any comprehensive sexual health education and HIV/AIDS prevention education instruction as to the date of such instruction and whether the instruction will be taught by District personnel or by outside consultants. If outside consultants are used, the name of the organization of each guest speaker will be identified. Parents have a right to request that the District provide them a copy of Education Code sections 51933, 51934, and 51938.

Anonymous, voluntary and confidential research and evaluation tools to measure students' health behaviors and risks, including tests, questionnaires, and surveys containing age-appropriate questions about the students' attitudes concerning or practices relating to sex may be administered to pupils in grades 7-12. Parents will be notified in writing and given the opportunity to review such tests, questionnaires and surveys and be informed that in order to excuse their student, they must state their request in writing. If a school receives a written request from a parent excusing a student from this activity, the student may not be subject to disciplinary action, academic penalty or other sanction and an alternative educational activity must be made available to the student.

# Student Surveys, Tests, and Questionnaires Regarding Beliefs and Practices (Ed. Code §§ 51513, 60614; 20 U.S.C. § 1232h)

No test, questionnaire, survey, or examination which has questions about a student's or his/her parents' beliefs and practices in sex, family life, morality, religion, political affiliations or beliefs, illegal, anti-social, self-incriminating, or demeaning behavior, mental or psychological problems, legally recognized privileged relationships (such as lawyer, physician, or minister), critical appraisals of individuals with whom you have close family relationships, or income (except as required by law to determine eligibility for participation in a program or for receiving financial assistance under such program) shall be administered without prior notification and written permission of the parent. Parents may inspect all instructional materials, including teacher's manuals, films, tapes or other supplementary material to be used in connection with any survey, analysis or evaluation.

# California Assessment of Student Performance & Progress (CAASPP) (Ed. Code §§ 60604, 60615, 60640; 5 C.C.R. § 852.)

Each year, parents will be notified regarding their student's participation in the CAASPP assessment system. Parents wanting to excuse their students from any or all parts of the CAASPP must submit a written request. Such written requests must be submitted to the school on an annual basis.

# Notification of Potential Failing Grade (Ed. Code §§ 49063, 49067)

Parents will be notified when a teacher has determined that your student is in danger of failing a course.

#### **Teacher and Paraprofessional Qualifications (20 U.S.C. § 6312)**

Upon request, parents have a right to request information regarding the professional qualifications of the classroom teachers who instruct their student. Federal law allows parents to request the following information: (1) If the student's teacher has met the state credential or license criteria for grade level and subject matter taught; (2) If the student's teacher is teaching under an emergency or other provisional status because of special circumstances; (3) If the teacher is teaching in the field of discipline of the certification of the teacher; and (4) If the student is receiving services from paraprofessional and, if so, their qualifications.

#### Language Acquisition Programs (Ed. Code § 310; 5 C.C.R. § 11310)

The District offers the following language acquisition program(s) for English learners: Designated ELD and Integrated ELD services. A Designated ELD class is offered for EL students in middle school, as well as for EL students in high school. Integrated ELD components are taught universally to all students at La Sierra Military Academy for all core subjects. The goal with the application of the Designated and Integrated ELD program services is to provide capacity building for the site's EL learners to gain continual fluency towards reclassification based on the completion of the Summative ELPAC exam which is administered to students during the spring semester of each school year.

Any language acquisition program provided by the District shall be designed using evidence-based research and include both Designated and Integrated English Language Development, and be allocated sufficient resources by the District to be effectively implemented, including, but not limited to, certificated teachers with the appropriate authorizations, necessary instructional materials, pertinent professional development for the proposed program, and opportunities for parent and community engagement to support the proposed program goals. Any language acquisition program provided by the District shall also, within a reasonable period of time, lead to grade-level proficiency in English, and, when the program model includes instruction in another language, proficiency in that other language; and achievement of the state-adopted academic content standards in English, and, when the program model includes instruction in another language, achievement of the state-adopted academic content standards in that other language.

Parents or legal guardians may choose a language acquisition program that best suits their child. When the parents or guardians of 30 or more students in a school, or 20 or more students in any grade level at a school, request a language acquisition program, the school must offer the language acquisition program to the extent possible once various requirements are met, such as the program having been established with parental, school employee, and community input.

When the parents or guardians of 30 or more students in a school, or 20 or more students in any grade level at a school, request the same or a substantially similar type of language acquisition program, the District shall respond by taking actions to comply with the timelines and requirements of 5 CCR 13111(h). Within 10 school days, the District will notify the parents of pupils attending the school, the school's teachers, administrators, and the District's English learner parent advisory committee and parent advisory committee, in writing, of the parents' requests for a language acquisition program. The District will identify costs and resources necessary to implement any new language acquisition program, including but not limited to certificated teachers with the appropriate authorizations, necessary instructional materials, pertinent professional development for the proposed program, and opportunities for parent and community engagement to support the proposed program goals. Within 60 calendar days, the District will determine whether it is possible to implement the requested language acquisition program and provide notice, in writing, to parents and guardians attending the school, the school's teachers, and administrators, of its determination. In the case of an affirmative decision to implement a language acquisition program at the school, the District will create and publish a reasonable timeline of actions necessary to implement the language acquisition program. In the case where the District determines it is not possible to implement a language acquisition program requested by parents, the District shall provide in written form an explanation of the reason(s) the program cannot be provided and may offer an alternate option that can be implemented at the school.

Educational Rights of High Mobility High School Students (Ed. Code §§ 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2)

"High mobility" high school students, which include students who are in foster care, homeless, recent immigrants, migrant students, former juvenile court school pupils, or from military families, have the following rights when transferring to a new school after completion of their second year of high school:

- (1) Have the option to be exempted from all coursework and other requirements that are more than statewide course requirements for graduation, unless the District makes a finding that the student is reasonably able to complete the District's graduation requirements in time to graduate by the end of the fourth year of high school.
- (2) Have the option of attending a fifth year of high school in order to complete statewide graduation course requirements.
- (3) To consult with District staff and the student's educational rights holder regarding other options available to the student, including a fifth year of high school, possible credit recovery, and any transfer opportunities available through the California Community Colleges. Such consultation must also include a discussion of how remaining for a fifth year of high school or accepting an exemption from the local graduation coursework requirements may potentially impact the student's vocational plans or ability to gain admission to college and also take into consideration the student's academic record and any other information relevant to making an informed decision.
- (4) Foster youth and homeless students have the right to consult with District staff and their educational rights holder regarding the option to remain in their school of origin.
- (5) Have their official transcript, reflecting the correct full and partial credits earned, sent to their new school within two business days. For foster youth, their official transcript must include a determination of the days of enrollment or seat time, or both if applicable, to ensure that transferring foster youth get full credit for coursework completed at their prior school.
- (6) Have their new school accept and issue the credits forwarded by the transferring school to prevent the student from unnecessarily retaking a course.
- (7) If exempted from local graduation requirements, and upon completion of statewide coursework requirements before the end of the fourth year of high school, the District may not require or request that the student graduate before the end of the student's fourth year of high school.

#### California College Guidance Initiative Data Sharing (Ed. Code § 60900.5(d))

The California College Guidance Initiative (CCGI) works with California school districts to make applying for college and student financial aid a more streamlined experience for students. The CCGI currently receives enrollment data for all public-school students in grades 6-12 from the California Department of Education. For more information about the CCGI, visit their website at <a href="https://www.californiacolleges.edu/#/">https://www.californiacolleges.edu/#/</a>.

Student transcript information may be shared with the CCGI in order to do both of the following: (a) provide students and their families with direct access to online tools and resources for college and career planning; and (b) enable a student to transit information shared with the CCGI to both institutions of higher education for purposes of admissions and academic placement, and the Student Aid Commission for purposes of determining eligibility for, and increasing uptake of, student financial aid.

#### **RECORDS**

Student Records Policy (Ed. Code §§ 49063, 49064; 5 C.C.R. § 432)

The District maintains mandatory permanent (kept indefinitely) and interim (may be destroyed after a stipulated length of time) student records. Mandatory permanent student records include the student's legal name; date of birth; method of verification of birth date; sex of student; name and address of parent of minor student; entering and leaving date of each school year and for any summer session or other extra session; subjects taken during each year, half-year, summer session, or quarter; if marks or credit are given, the mark or number of credits toward graduation allows for work taken; verification of or exemption from required immunizations; and date of high school graduation or equivalent. Mandatory interim student records include a log or record identifying those persons (except authorized school personnel) or organizations requesting or receiving information from the record; health information, including Child Health Developmental Disabilities Prevention Program verification or waiver; participation in special education programs including required tests, case studies, authorizations, and actions necessary to establish eligibility for admission or discharge; language training records; progress slips and/or notices; parental restrictions regarding access to directory information or related stipulations; parent or adult student rejoinders to challenged records and to disciplinary action; parental authorizations or prohibitions of student participation in specific programs; and results of standardized tests administered within the preceding three years. In addition, permitted student records (may be destroyed when no longer useful) are kept. Permitted student records include objective counselor and/or teacher ratings, standardized test results older than three years, routine discipline data, verified reports of relevant behavioral patterns, all disciplinary notices, and attendance records. The following position is responsible for maintaining all student records:

La Sierra Military Academy School Registrar

An access log or record of who has requested or received information from a student's records is kept in the La Sierra Military Academy Office Room in the school administrative office. The Education Code and the District's Administrative Regulation 5125 set forth the criteria under which school officials and employees may access, change, or delete information in a student's records.

#### Parent Access to Records (Ed. Code §§ 49063, 49065, 49069, 49070, 56504; 34 C.F.R. § 99.7)

Parents of currently enrolled or former students have an absolute right of access to any and all student records related to their children that are maintained by the District. Parents have the right to inspect and review their children's student records during regular school hours within five business days of a request. The District may charge parents a reasonable fee not to exceed the actual copying cost for reproducing copies of student records.

Parents may challenge the content of a student record if there is an inaccuracy, an unsubstantiated personal conclusion or inference, a conclusion or inference outside of the observer's area of competence, a comment not based on the personal observation of a named person with the time and place of the observation noted, or if the student record includes misleading information or violates the student's privacy or other rights. The Superintendent or designee will meet with the parent and the certificated employee who recorded the information in question, if any, and presently employed by the District, within 30 days. The Superintendent will determine whether to sustain or deny the allegations. If the challenge is sustained, the changes will be made. If the challenge is denied, the parent may appeal the decision in writing to the District's governing board within 30 days of the refusal. The District's governing board will determine whether to sustain or deny the allegations within 30 days of receipt of an appeal. The decision of the District's governing board is final. The Superintendent and the District's governing board cannot order a student's grade to be changed unless the teacher who determined the grade is given an opportunity to state the reasons for which the grade was given and is included in all discussions relating to changing the grade.

A prospectus of curriculum, including titles, descriptions, and instructions aims of every course offered, is available at the school site for parent review upon request. Copies are available for a reasonable fee not to exceed the actual copying cost.

### Student Records Review (Ed. Code §§ 49063, 49064, 49076; 34 C.F.R. §§ 99.7, 99.31)

The District may share student records with school officials and employees who have a legitimate educational interest. "School officials and employees" and "legitimate educational interest" are defined under Administrative Regulation 5125.

Parental Consent to Release Student Information; No Parental Consent to Release Directory Information (Ed. Code §§ 49061(c), 49063, 49073, 49076, 49077; 10 U.S.C. § 503; 20 U.S.C. §§ 1232g, 7908; 34 C.F.R. § 99.37)

Federal and state law require that the District obtain parent written consent prior to the disclosure of personally identifiable information contained in a student's records, except to the extent disclosure without consent is permitted by law (e.g. subpoena or court order). However, the District may disclose directory information without parental consent to certain entities. Directory information released to law enforcement agencies, employers and prospective employers, news media)] may include: student's name, address, telephone number, date of birth, email address, major field of study, participation in officially recognized activities and sports, weight and height of members of athletic teams, dates of attendance, degrees and awards received, most recent educational agency or institution attended. Upon request by a military recruiter or an institution of higher education, the District must give the requester the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of its secondary students.

If you do not want the District to disclose directory information from your student's education records without your prior written consent, you must notify the District in writing by **September 26, 2025**. The district has designated the following information as directory information:

- 1. Name
- 2. Address
- 3. Telephone Number
- 4. Electronic mail address
- 5. Date of birth
- 6. Major Field of study
- 7. Participation in officially recognized activities and sports
- 8. Weight and height of athletic team members
- 9. Dates of attendance
- 10. Degrees and awards received
- 11. Most recent previous school attended

The District will not release directory information pertaining to a homeless student, unless a parent or student accorded parental rights has provided written consent that the directory information may be released.

# Transfer of Student Records (Ed. Code § 49068; 34 C.F.R. §§ 99.7, 99.34)

The District will forward student records, including transcripts, immunization records, and, when applicable, suspension notices, expulsion records, and individualized education programs, to other school

districts that have requested the records and in which the student seeks or intends to enroll or is already enrolled so long as the disclosure is for purposes related to the student's enrollment or transfer.

# Student Records Complaints (Ed. Code § 49063; 20 U.S.C. § 1232g; 34 C.F.R. §§ 99.7, 99.63)

Parents have the right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning an alleged failure by the District to comply with the requirements of the General Education Provisions Act or FERPA. The name and address of the office that administers FERPA are:

Student Policy Compliance Office U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20202

#### **HIGH SCHOOL ONLY**

#### College Admission Requirements/Career Technical Education (Ed. Code §§ 51229, 66204)

#### **University of California:**

The University of California (UC) has three paths to eligibility for graduating high school seniors who plan to attend:

- (1) Eligibility by Examination Alone Students must achieve specified high scores on their college admissions tests.
- (2) Eligibility in the Local Context (ELC) Students must rank in the top four percent of their graduating class at a participating California high school.
- (3) Eligibility in the Statewide Context Students must complete specific coursework and college admissions tests and earn the required GPA and test scores.

The following website links provide more information regarding UC admission requirements:

http://admission.universityofcalifornia.edu/ http://admission.universityofcalifornia.edu/freshman/requirements/

#### **California State University:**

The California State University (CSU) system has A-G standards that must be met in each of the following areas:

- (1) Specific high school courses
- (2) Grades in specified courses and test scores
- (3) Graduation from high school

The following website link provides more information regarding the CSU admission requirements:

http://calstate.edu/apply

#### **Career Technical Education:**

Career Technical Education is a program of study that involved a multiyear sequence of courses that integrates core academic knowledge with technical and occupational knowledge to provide students with a pathway to postsecondary education and careers.

The following website link provides more information regarding Career Technical Education:

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/ct/

# **Guidance Counseling:**

Students may meet with guidance counselors at their school to discuss college admissions requirements and/or to enroll in career technical education courses.

#### Cal Grant Program / Student Opt-Out (Ed. Code § 69432.9)

Students will automatically be deemed Cal Grant applicants unless the parent, or the student if the student is 18 years or older, opts out by **September 12<sup>th</sup>**, **2025**, during the student's eleventh grade year. Eleventh graders who are 18 years or older and parents of minor eleventh graders may contact their Counselor with specific questions if they do not want their grade point averages reported to the California Student Aid Commission (CSAC) for purposes of the Cal Grant Program. Our district high school plan to first submit senior grade point averages to CSAC on September 26, 2025. Our district high school must first submit senior grade point averages to CSAC no later than October 1 of each year.

# Apprenticeship and Pre-Apprenticeship Programs (Ed. Code § 48980.5)

The Department of Industrial Relations' Division of Apprenticeship Standards maintains a database of registered apprenticeship programs and pre-apprenticeship programs, which is accessible via the following website link: <a href="https://www.dir.ca.gov/databases/das/aigstart.asp">https://www.dir.ca.gov/databases/das/aigstart.asp</a>. The District shall assist students in locating apprenticeship opportunities through this database and may use contact information contained in the database to obtain information or materials, including, but not limited to, pamphlets or brochures.

C:\GRW WORD\Board Policies\Parent Handbook\Notice to parents revised.doc Rev. 8/2/2025

# **APPENDIX**

# **Attachments:**

- 1. Sexual Harassment Policy and Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures (Please also see the District's website for policies): tcoe.org/HR/Policies
- 2. Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy
- 3. Form to Request a Change of Attendance and Options
- 4. Uniform Complaint Procedures
- 5. Williams Complaint Procedures
- 6. List of Pesticide Products
- 7. Calendar listing minimum or pupil free days and all school activities planned.
- 8. All In Health Care for All Families Fact Sheet
- 9. Directory Information Opt-Out Form
- 10. Firearm Safety and Safe Storage of Firearms Information
- 11. Form for parent/guardian to sign and return verifying receipt of Annual Notification

#### SEXUAL HARASSMENT INFORMATION SHEET

Sexual Harassment is a form of discrimination which is prohibited by both federal and state law. County Board and Superintendent Policies 4119.11 prohibit sexual harassment of employees and Board Policy 5145.7 prohibits sexual harassment of students. Sexual harassment includes gender based harassment of a person of the same sex as the harasser.

Both state and federal law and Office Policy prohibit retaliation against any complainant or participant in the sexual harassment complaint process.

**Definition:** Prohibited sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, unwanted requests for sexual favors or other unwanted verbal, visual or physical conduct of a sexual nature made against another person of the same or opposite gender, in the work or educational setting when:

- Submission to the conduct is made expressly or implicitly a term or condition of an individual's employment.
- Submission to or rejection of such conduct by the individual is used as the basis for an employment decision, including, but not limited to, promotion, demotion, transfer, reassignment or termination.
- The conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with the individual's work performance; creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment; or adversely affecting the other individual's evaluation, advancement, assigned duties, or any other condition of employment or career development.

#### **Examples of Sexual Harassment:** Sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to:

- Unwelcome leering, sexual flirtations or propositions.
- Offering employment benefits in exchange for sexual favors.
- Making sexual gestures, displaying sexually suggestive objects, pictures, cartoons or posters.
- Unwelcome sexual slurs, epithets, threats, innuendoes, verbal abuse, derogatory comments or sexually degrading descriptions.
- Sexual jokes, stories, cartoons, drawings, pictures, graffiti, or sexually explicit e-mails.
- Spreading sexual rumors.
- Graphic verbal comments about an individual's body, or overly personal conversations, or pressure for sexual activity.
- Touching an individual's body or clothes in a sexual way.
- Any act of retaliation against an individual who reports a violation of the Office's sexual harassment policy or who participates in the investigation of a sexual harassment complaint.
- Massaging, grabbing, fondling, stroking or brushing the body.
- Cornering, blocking, leaning over, or impeding normal movements.
- Displaying sexually suggestive objects or using sexual computer screen savers.

**Prohibition:** The Office prohibits sexual harassment in the working environment of employees or applicants by any person in any form. Employees who permit or engage in such harassment may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including dismissal.

Complaint Procedure: Any employee who believes he or she has been sexually harassed is encouraged to report the incident through either an informal or formal complaint process. An informal complaint may be made with the employment supervisor, program manager, or administrator. A formal complaint must be in writing and made to the Director of Human Resources, PO Box 5091, Visalia CA 93278-5091. Any employee having knowledge of conduct by another employee, student volunteer or individual in the employment or academic community which may constitute

sexual harassment of employees or students is required to immediately report such conduct to any of the individuals specified in the Office's policies.

Employees needing additional information regarding the Office's sexual harassment policies should contact the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources at 559-733-6306. A copy of the Office's policy prohibiting sexual harassment of employees and sexual harassment of students can be obtained from the Human Resources office.

**Legal Remedies:** The Tulare County Office of Education encourages employees to file their complaints of sexual harassment with the Office so that the complaint can be resolved at the earliest possible date. However, employees are not prohibited from submitting their complaint directly to the Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH). The address and telephone number of the local office of the DFEH are as follows:

Fresno DFEH 1900 Mariposa Mall Suite 130 Fresno, CA 93721-2500 (800) 884-1684

Employees who file a complaint may be entitled to civil law remedies, including, but not limited to, injunctions, restraining orders, hiring, reinstatement, back pay, promotion or monetary damages.

Please also refer to the District's website: tcoe.org/about/statement-of-non-discrimination regarding the district's statement on Non-Discrimination as it pertains to civil rights and Title IX procedures.

#### TULARE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

# **Board Policy**

BP 5145.7 Sexual Harassment

#### **Students**

The Tulare County Board of Education and Tulare County Superintendent of Schools are committed to maintaining a safe school environment that is free from harassment and discrimination. The Tulare County Office of Education prohibits sexual harassment of students at school or at school-sponsored or school-related activities. The Tulare County Office of Education also prohibits retaliatory behavior or action against any person who reports, files a complaint or testifies about, or otherwise supports a complainant in alleging sexual harassment.

The county office strongly encourages any student who feels that he/she is being or has been sexually harassed on school grounds or at a school-sponsored or school-related activity by another student or an adult to immediately contact his/her teacher, the principal, or any other available school employee. Any employee who receives a report or observes an incident of sexual harassment shall notify the principal or a county office compliance officer.

Complaints regarding sexual harassment shall be investigated and resolved in accordance with law and county office procedures specified in BP/AR 1312.3 – Uniform Complaint Procedures. Principals are responsible for notifying students and parents/guardians that complaints of sexual harassment can be filed under BP/AR 1312.3 and where to obtain a copy of the procedures.

The county office designates the individual(s) identified below as the employee(s) responsible for coordinating the county office's efforts to comply with state and federal civil rights laws including Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and to answer inquiries regarding the county office's nondiscrimination policies. The individual(s) shall also serve as the compliance officer(s) specified in AR 1312.3 – Uniform Complaint Procedures as the responsible employee(s) to handle complaints regarding unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying based on actual ancestry, age, color disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, age, sex, sexual orientation, or association with a person or a group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. The coordinator/compliance officer(s) may be contacted at:

Deputy Superintendent, Instructional Services (title or position)

6200 S. Mooney Blvd., Visalia CA 93277 (physical address)

P.O. Box 5091, Visalia CA 93278-5091

(mailing address) (559) 733-6328

(telephone number)

Director, Human Resources

(title or position)

6200 S. Mooney Blvd., Visalia CA 93277 (physical address)

P.O. Box 5091, Visalia CA 93278-5091

(mailing address)

(559) 733-6306

(telephone number)

The county superintendent or designee shall take appropriate actions to reinforce the county office's sexual harassment policy.

#### Instruction/Information

The county superintendent or designee shall ensure that all of its students receive age-appropriate information on sexual harassment. Such instruction and information shall include:

- 1. What acts and behaviors constitute sexual harassment, including the fact that sexual harassment could occur between people of the same sex and could involve sexual violence
- 2. A clear message that students do not have to endure sexual harassment under any circumstances
- 3. Encouragement to report observed incidents of sexual harassment even where the alleged victim of the harassment has not complained
- 4. A clear message that student safety is the county office's primary concern, and that any separate rule violation involving an alleged victim or any other person reporting a sexual harassment incident will be addressed separately and will not affect the manner in which the sexual harassment complaint will be received, investigated, or resolved
- 5. Information about the county office's procedure for investigating complaints and the person(s) to whom a report of sexual harassment should be made
- 6. Information about the rights of students and parents/guardians to file a civil or criminal complaint, as applicable

#### **Disciplinary Actions**

Any student who engages in sexual harassment or sexual violence at school or at a school-sponsored or school-related activity is in violation of this policy and shall be subject to disciplinary action. For students in grades 4-12, disciplinary action may include suspension and/or expulsion, provided that, in imposing such discipline, the entire circumstances of the incident(s) shall be taken into account.

Any staff member found to have engaged in sexual harassment or sexual violence toward any student shall be subject to discipline up to and including dismissal in accordance with applicable policies, laws and/or collective bargaining agreements.

# **Record-Keeping**

The county superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of all reported cases of sexual harassment to enable the county office to monitor, address, and prevent repetitive harassing behavior in county office programs and schools.

Legal References begin on next page

### Legal Reference:

#### **EDUCATION CODE**

200-262.4 – Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex

48900 – Grounds for suspension or expulsion

48900.2 – Additional grounds for suspension or expulsion; sexual harassment

48904 – Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct

48980 – Notice at beginning of term

#### CIVIL CODE

51.9 – Liability for sexual harassment; business, service and professional relationships

1714.1 – Liability of parents/guardians for willful misconduct of minor

#### GOVERNMENT CODE

12950.1 – Sexual harassment training

#### CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

4600-4687 – Uniform complaint procedures

4900-4965 – Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs

#### <u>UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20</u>

1221 – Application of laws

1232g – Family Education Rights and Privacy Act

1681-1688 – Title IX, discrimination

#### UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

1983 – Civil action for deprivation of rights

2000d-2000d-7 - Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964

2000e-2000e-17 - Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended

#### CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

99.1-99.67 – Family Education Rights and Privacy

106.1-106.71 – Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs

#### **COURT DECISIONS**

Donovan v. Poway Unified School District (2008) 167 Cal.App.4<sup>th</sup> 567

Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District (2003) 324 F.3d 1130 (9th Cir.)

Reese v. Jefferson School District (2001) 208 F.3d 736 (9th Cir.)

Davis v. Monroe County Board of Education (1999) 526 U.S. 629

Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District (1998) 524 U.S. 274

Oona by Kate S. v. McCaffrey (1998) 143 F.3d 473 (9th Cir.)

Doe v. Petaluma City School District (1995) 54 F.3d 1447 (9th Cir.)

#### Management Resources:

#### CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014

Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011

#### U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS

Questions and Answers on Title IX and Sexual Violence, April 2014

Dear Colleague Letter: Sexual Violence, April 2011

Sexual Harassment: It's Not Academic, September 2008

Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School Employees, Other Students, or Third Parties, January 2001

#### Management Resources continue on next page

#### **WEB SITES**

CSBA: <a href="http://www.csba.org">http://www.csba.org</a>

California Department of Education: <a href="http://www.cde.ca.gov">http://www.cde.ca.gov</a>

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: <a href="http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr">http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr</a>

Policy adopted: 9/15/93 Tulare County Board of

Education Visalia, California

Revised: 1/11/06, 7/8/2015

#### Sexual Harassment

Prohibited sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal, visual, or physical contact of a sexual nature made against another person of the same or opposite gender, in the educational setting, when: (Education Code 212.5)

- 1. Submission to the conduct is explicitly or implicitly made a term or condition of an individual's academic status or progress.
- 2. Submission to or rejection of the conduct by an individual is used as the basis for an academic decision affecting the individual.
- 3. The conduct has the purpose of effect of having a negative impact on the individual's academic performance, or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment.
- 4. Submission to or rejection of the conduct by the individual is used as the basis for any decision affecting the individual regarding benefits, services, honors, programs, or activities available at or through the school.

Other types of conduct which are prohibited and which may constitute sexual harassment include, but are not limited to:

- 1. Unwelcome leering, sexual flirtations or propositions.
- 2. Unwelcome sexual slurs, epithets, threats, verbal abuse, derogatory comments or sexually degrading descriptions.
- 3. Graphic verbal comments about an individual's body, or overly personal conversation.
- 4. Sexual jokes, notes, stories, drawings, pictures, or gestures.
- 5. Spreading sexual rumors.
- 6. Teasing or sexual remarks about students enrolled in a predominantly single-gender class.
- 7. Touching an individual's body or clothes in a sexual way.
- 8. Massaging, grabbing, fondling, stroking or brushing the body
- 9. Purposefully cornering or blocking of normal movements.
- 10. Displaying sexually suggestive objects in the educational environment.
- 11. Any act of retaliation against an individual who reports a violation of the Office's sexual harassment policy or who participates in the investigation of a sexual harassment complaint.

#### **Sexual Harassment** (continued)

#### **Notifications**

A copy of the sexual harassment policy shall:

- 1. Be included in the notifications that are sent to parents/guardians at the beginning of each school year. (Education Code 48980; 5 CCR 4917)
- 2. Be displayed in a prominent location in the main administrative building or other area where notices of rules, regulations, procedures and standards of conduct are posted. (Education Code 231.5)
- 3. Be provided upon enrollment for new students at the beginning of each quarter, semester or summer session. (Education Code 231.5)
- 4. Appear in any school publication that sets forth the school's comprehensive rules, regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct. (Education Code 231.5)
- 5. Be provided to employees and employee organizations (Education Code 231.5)

#### **Investigation of Complaints at School (Site-Level Grievance Procedure)**

- 1. The site administrator or designee shall promptly investigate all complaints of sexual harassment. In doing so, he/she shall talk individually with:
  - a. The student who is complaining
  - b. The person accused of harassment
  - c. Anyone who witnessed the conduct complained of
  - d. Anyone mentioned as having related information
- 2. The student who is complaining shall have an opportunity to describe the incident, present witnesses and other evidence of the harassment, and put his/her complaint in writing.
- 3. The site administrator or designee shall discuss the complaint only with the people described above. When necessary to carry out his/her investigation or for other good reasons that apply to the particular situation, the site administrator or designee also may discuss the complaint with the following persons:
  - a. The County Superintendent or designee
  - b. The parent/guardian of the student who complained

#### **Sexual Harassment** (continued)

- c. If the alleged harasser is a student, her/her parent/guardian
- d. A teacher or staff member whose knowledge of the students involved may help in determining who is telling the truth
- e. Child protective agencies responsible for investigating child abuse reports
- f. Legal counsel for the county office
- 4. When the student who complained and alleged harasser so agree, the site administrator or designee may arrange for them to resolve the complaint informally with the help of a counselor, teacher, administrator or trained mediator. The student who complained shall never be asked to work out the problem directly with the accused person unless such help is provided and both parties agree.
- 5. In reaching a decision about the complaint, the site administrator or designee may take into account:
  - a. Statements made by the persons identified above
  - b. The details and consistency of each person's account
  - c. Evidence of how the complaining student reacted to the incident
  - d. Evidence of any past incidences of harassment by the alleged harasser
  - e. Evidence of any past harassment complaints that were found to be untrue
- 6. To judge the severity of the harassment, the site administrator or designee may take into consideration:
  - a. How the misconduct affected one or more students' education
  - b. The type, frequency and duration of the misconduct
  - c. The number of persons involved
  - d. The age and gender of the person accused of harassment
  - e. The subject(s) of the harassment
  - f. The place and situation where the incident occurred
  - g. Other incidents at the school, including incidents of harassment that were not related to gender

#### **Sexual Harassment** (continued)

- 7. The site administrator or designee shall write a report of his/her findings, decision, and the reasons for the decision and shall present this report to the student who complained and the person accused.
- 8. The site administrator or designee shall give the County Superintendent or designee a written report of the complaint and investigation. It the site administrator or designee verifies that sexual harassment occurred, this report shall describe the actions taken to end the harassment, address the effects of the harassment on the student harassed, and prevent retaliation or further harassment.
- 9. Within two weeks after receiving the complaint, the site administrator or designee shall determine whether or not the student who complained has been further harassed. The site administrator or designee shall keep a record of this information and shall continue this follow-up.

#### **Enforcement**

The site administrator or designee shall take appropriate actions to enforce the sexual harassment policy. These actions may include:

- 1. Removing vulgar or offending graffiti.
- 2. Providing staff in-services and student instruction or counseling.
- 3. Notifying parents/guardians of the actions taken
- 4. Notifying child protective services
- 5. Taking appropriate disciplinary action as needed. In addition, the site administrator or designee may take disciplinary measures against any person who is found to have made a complaint of sexual harassment which he/she knew was not true.

Regulation approved: 9/15/93 Office of the Tulare County Superintendent

Revised: 1/11/06 of Schools, Visalia, CA

# Nondiscrimination/Harassment Policy

#### TULARE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

## Administrative Regulation

AR 5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

#### **Students**

The county office designates the individual(s) identified below as the employee(s) responsible for coordinating the county office's efforts to comply with state and federal civil rights laws, including Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and to answer inquiries regarding the county office's nondiscrimination policies. The individual(s) shall also serve as the compliance officer(s) specified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures as the responsible employee to handle complaints regarding unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying based on actual race, color, ancestry, national origin, nationality, ethnicity, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital or parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or any other legally protected status; the perception of one or more of such characteristics; or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.

The coordinator/compliance officer(s) may be contacted at: (Education Code 234.1; 5 CCR 4621)

Deputy Superintendent, Instructional Services (title or position)

6200 S. Mooney Blvd., Visalia CA 93277 (physical address)

P.O. Box <u>50911</u>, Visalia CA 3278-5091 (mailing address)

(559) 733-6328

(telephone number)

<u>Director, Human Resources</u>
(title or position)

6200 S. Mooney Blvd., Visalia CA 93277 (physical address)

P.O. Box 5091, Visalia CA 93278-509 (mailing address)

(559) 733-6306

(telephone number)

#### Measures to Prevent Discrimination

To prevent unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, and bullying, of students at county office programs, schools or in school activities and to ensure equal access of all students to educational program, the County Superintendent or designee shall implement the following measures:

1. Publicize the county office's nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures to students parents/guardians, employees, volunteers, and the general public and post them on the county office's web site and other locations that are easily accessible to students (Education Code 234.1)

- 2. Provide to students a handbook that contains age-appropriate information that clearly describes the county office's nondiscrimination policy, procedures for filing a complaint, and resources available to students who feel that they have been the victim of any such behavior. (Education Code 234.1)
- 3. Annually notify all students and parents/guardians of the county office's nondiscrimination policy. The notice shall inform students and parents/guardians of the possibility that students will participate in a sex-segregated school program or activity together with another student of the opposite biological sex, and that they may inform the compliance officer if they feel such participation would be against the student's religious beliefs and/or practices or a violation of his/her right to privacy. In such a case, the compliance officer shall meet with the student and/or parent/guardian who raises the objection to determine how best to accommodate that student. The notice shall inform students and parents/guardians that the county office will not typically notify them of individual instances of transgender students participating in a program or activity.
- 4. The County Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all students and parents/guardians, including students and parents/guardians with limited English proficiency, are notified of how to access the relevant information provided in the county office's nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures, notices, and forms in a language they can understand.
  - If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular county office program or school speak a single primary language other than English, the county office policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning nondiscrimination shall be translated into that language in accordance with Education Code 234.1 and 48985. In all other instances, the county office shall ensure meaningful access to all relevant information for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency.
- 5. Provide students, employees, volunteers, and parents/guardians age-appropriate training and information regarding the county office's nondiscrimination policy; what constitutes prohibited discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying; how and to whom a report of an incident should be made; and how to guard against segregating or stereotyping students when providing instruction, guidance, supervision, or other services to them. Such training and information shall include guidelines for addressing issues related to transgender and gender-nonconforming students.
- 6. At the beginning of each school year, inform county office employees that any employee who witnesses any act of unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, against a student is required to intervene if it is safe to do so. (Education Code 234.1)
- 7. At the beginning of each school year, inform each principal, program director or designee of the county office's responsibility to provide appropriate assistance or resources to protect students' privacy rights and ensure their safety from threatened or potentially discriminatory behavior.

#### Enforcement of County Office Policy

The County Superintendent or designee shall take appropriate actions to reinforce BP 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment. As needed, these actions may include any of the following:

- 1. Removing vulgar or offending graffiti
- 2. Providing training to students, staff, and parents/guardians about how to recognize unlawful discrimination and how to respond.
- 3. Disseminating and/or summarizing the county office's policy and regulation regarding unlawful discrimination
- 4. Consistent with the laws regarding the confidentiality of student and personnel records, communicating the county office's response to students, parents/guardians, and the community
- 5. Taking appropriate disciplinary action against perpetrators and anyone determined to have engaged in wrongdoing, including any students who is found to have made a complaint of discrimination that he/she knew was not true.

#### Process for Initiating and Responding to Complaints

Any student who feels that he/she has been subjected to unlawful discrimination described above or in county office policy is strongly encouraged to immediately contact the compliance officer, principal, or any other staff member. In addition, any student who observes any such incident is strongly encouraged to report the incident to the compliance officer or principal, whether or not the alleged victim files a complaint.

Any county office employee who observes an incident of unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, or to whom such an incident is reported shall report the incident to the compliance officer or principal within a school day, whether or not the alleged victim files a complaint.

Any county office employee who witnesses an incident of unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, shall immediately intervene to stop the incident when it is safe to do so. (Education Code 234.1)

When any report of unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, is submitted to or received by the principal or compliance officer, he/she shall inform the student or parent/guardian of the right to file a formal complaint pursuant to the provisions of AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. Any report of unlawful discrimination involving the principal, compliance officer, or any other person to whom the complaint would ordinarily be reported or filed shall instead be submitted to the County S1,1perintendent or designee. Even if the student chooses not to file a formal complaint, the principal or compliance officer shall implement immediate measures necessary to stop the discrimination and to ensure all students have access to the educational program and a safe school environment.

Upon receiving a complaint of discrimination, the compliance officer shall immediately investigate the complaint in accordance with the county office's uniform complaint procedures specified in AR 1312.3

Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming Students

Gender identity means a student's gender-related identity, appearance, or behavior, whether or not that gender-related identity, appearance, or behavior is different from that traditionally associated with the student's physiology or assigned sex at birth.

Gender expression means a student's gender-related appearance and behavior, whether stereotypically associated with the student's assigned sex at birth. (Education Code 210.7)

Gender transition refers to the process in which a student changes from living and identifying as the sex assigned to the student at birth to living and identifying as the sex that corresponds to the student's gender identity.

Gender-nonconforming student means a student whose gender expression differs from stereotypical expectations.

Transgender student means a student whose gender identity or gender expression is different from that traditionally associated with the assigned sex at birth.

Acts of verbal, nonverbal, or physical aggression, intimidation, or hostility that are based on sex, gender identity, or gender expression, regardless of whether they are sexual in nature, where the act has the purpose or effect of having a negative impact on the student's academic performance or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment are prohibited under state and federal law. Examples of types of conduct which are prohibited in the county office and which may constitute gender-based harassment include, but are not limited to:

- 1. Refusing to address a student by a name and the pronouns consistent with his/her gender identity
- 2. Disciplining or disparaging a transgender student because his/her mannerisms, hairstyle, or style of dress correspond to his/her gender identity, or a non-transgender student because his/her mannerisms, hairstyle, or style of dress do not conform to stereotypes for his/her gender or are perceived as indicative of the other sex
- 3. Blocking a student's entry to the bathroom that corresponds to his/her gender identity because the student is transgender or gender-nonconforming
- 4. Taunting a student because he/she participates in an athletic activity more typically favored by a student of the other sex
- 5. Revealing a student's transgender status to individuals who do not have a legitimate need for the information
- 6. Use of gender-specific slurs
- 7. Physical assault of a student motivated by hostility toward him/her because of his/her gender, gender identity, or gender expression

The county office's uniform complaint procedures (AR 1312.3) shall be used to report and resolve complaints alleging discrimination against transgender and gender-nonconforming students. Examples of bases for complaints include, but are not limited to, the above list as well as improper rejection by the county office of a student's asserted gender identity, denial of access to facilities that correspond with a student's gender identity, improper disclosure of a student's transgender status, discriminatory enforcement of a dress code, and other instances of gender-based harassment.

To ensure that transgender and gender-nonconforming students are afforded the same rights, benefits, and protections provided to all students by law and Board policy, the county office shall address each situation on a case-by-case basis, in accordance with the following guidelines:

1. Right to privacy: A student's transgender or gender-nonconforming status is his/her private information and the county office will only disclose the information to others with the student's prior written consent, except when the disclosure is otherwise required by law or when the county office has compelling evidence that disclosure is necessary to preserve the student's physical or mental well-being. In the latter instance, the county office shall limit disclosure to individuals reasonably believed to be able to protect the student's well-being. Any county office employee to whom a student discloses his/her transgender or gender-nonconforming status shall seek the student's permission to notify the compliance officer. If the student refuses to give permission, the employee shall keep the student's information confidential, unless he/she is required to disclose or report the student's information pursuant to this procedure, and shall inform the student that honoring the student's request may limit the county office's ability to meet the student permits the employee to notify the compliance officer, the employee shall do so within three school days.

As appropriate given the physical, emotional, and other significant risks to the student, the compliance officer may consider discussing with the student any need to disclose the student's transgender or gender-nonconformity status to his/her parents/guardians and/or others, including other students, teacher(s), or other adults on campus. The county office shall offer support services, such as counseling, to students who wish to inform their parents/guardians of their status and desire assistance in doing so.

- 2. Determining a Student's Gender Identity: The compliance officer shall accept the student's assertion unless county office personnel present a credible basis for believing that the student's assertion is for an improper purpose. In such a case, the compliance officer shall document the improper purpose and, within seven school days of receiving notification of the student's assertion, shall provide a written response to the student and, if appropriate, to his/her parents/guardians.
- 3. Addressing a Student's Transition Needs: The compliance officer shall arrange a meeting with the student and, if appropriate, his/her parents/guardians to identify potential issues, including transition-related issues, and to develop strategies for addressing them. The meeting shall discuss the transgender or gender-nonconforming student's rights and how those rights may affect and be affected by the rights of other students and shall address specific subjects related to the student's access to facilities and to academic or educational support programs, services, or activities, including, but not limited to, sports and other competitive endeavors. In addition, the compliance officer shall identify specific school site employee(s) to whom the student may report any problem related to his/her status as a transgender or gender-nonconforming

individual, so that prompt action could be taken to address it. Alternatively, if appropriate and desired by the student, the school may form a support team for the student that will meet periodically to assess whether the student's arrangements are meeting his/her educational needs and providing equal access to programs and activities, educate appropriate staff about the student's transition, and serve as a resource to the student to better protect the student from gender-based discrimination.

- 4. Accessibility to Sex-Segregated Facilities, Programs, and Activities: The county office may maintain sex-segregated facilities, such as restrooms and locker rooms, and sex-segregated programs and activities, such as physical education classes, intermural sports, and interscholastic athletic programs. A student shall be entitled to access facilities and participate in programs and activities consistent with his/her gender identity. If available and requested by any student, regardless of the underlying reason, the county office shall offer options to address privacy concerns in sex-segregated facilities, such as gender-neutral or single-use restrooms or changing area, a bathroom stall with a door, an area in the locker room separated by a curtain or screen, access to a staff member's office, or use of the locker room before or after the other students. However, the county office shall not require a student to utilize these options because he/she is transgender or gender-nonconforming. In addition, a student shall be permitted to participate in accordance with his/her gender identity in other circumstances where students are separated by gender, such as for class discussions, yearbook pictures, and field trips. A student's right to participate in a sex-segregated activity in accordance with his/her gender identity shall not render invalid or inapplicable any other eligibility rule established for participation in the activity.
- 5. Student Records: A student's legal name or gender as entered on the mandatory student record required pursuant to 5 CCR 432 shall only be changed pursuant to a court order. However, at the written request of a student or, if appropriate, his/her parents/guardians, the county office shall use the student's preferred name and pronouns consistent with his/her gender identity on all other county office-related documents.
- 6. Names and Pronouns: If a student so chooses, county office personnel shall be required to address the student by a name and the pronouns consistent with his/her gender identity, without the necessity of a court order or a change to his/her official county office record. However, inadvertent slips or honest mistakes by county office personnel in the use of the student's name and/or consistent pronouns shall not constitute a violation of this administrative regulation or the accompanying board policy.
- 7. Uniforms/Dress Code: A student has the right to dress in a manner consistent with his/her gender identity, subject to any dress code adopted on a school site/

Regulation approved: 2/19/2015

Revised:

De

Tulare County Superintendent of Schools

Visalia, CA

#### TULARE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

### **Board Policy**

BP 5145.3 Nondiscrimination/Harassment

#### **Students**

The Governing Board desires to provide a safe school environment that allows all students equal access and opportunities in the county office's academic and other educational support programs, services, and activities. The Board prohibits, at any county office program, school, or school activity, unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying of any student based on the student's actual or perceived race, color, ancestry, national origin, nationality, ethnicity, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital or parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, or gender expression or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.

This policy shall apply to all acts related to school activity or to school attendance within a schools under the jurisdiction of the Tulare County Superintendent of Schools. (Education Code 234.1)

School personnel are required to take immediate steps to intervene when safe to do so when he or she witnesses an act of discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying.

The county office designates the individual(s) identified below as the employee(s) responsible for coordinating the county office's efforts to comply with state and federal civil rights laws including Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and to answer inquiries regarding the county office's nondiscrimination policies. The individual(s) shall also serve as the compliance officer(s) specified in AR 1312.3 – Uniform Complaint Procedures as the responsible employee(s) to handle complaints regarding unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying based on actual ancestry, age, color disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, age, sex, sexual orientation, or association with a person or a group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. The coordinator/compliance officer(s) may be contacted at:

Deputy Superintendent, Instructional Services (title or position)	Director, Human Resources (title or position)
6200 S. Mooney Blvd., Visalia CA 93277	6200 S. Mooney Blvd., Visalia CA 93277
(physical address)	(physical address)
P.O. Box 5091, Visalia CA 93278-5091 (mailing address)	P.O. Box 5091, Visalia CA 93278-5091 (mailing address)
(559) 733-6328	(559) 733-6306
(telephone number)	(telephone number)

Unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, includes physical, verbal, nonverbal, or written conduct based on any of the categories listed above.

Unlawful discrimination also shall include the creation of a hostile environment when the prohibited conduct is so severe, persistent, or pervasive that it affects a student's ability to participate in or benefit from an educational program or activity; creates an intimidating, threatening, hostile, or offensive educational environment; has the effect of substantially or unreasonably interfering with a student's academic performance; or otherwise adversely affects a student's educational opportunities.

Unlawful discrimination also includes disparate treatment of students based on one of the categories above with respect to the provision of opportunities to participate in school programs or activities or the provision or receipt of educational benefits or services.

The Board also prohibits any form of retaliation against any individual who files or otherwise participates in the filing or investigation of a complaint or report regarding an incident of discrimination. Retaliation complaints shall be investigated and resolved in the same manner as a discrimination complaint.

The County Superintendent of Schools or designee shall facilitate students' access to the educational program by publicizing the county office's nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures to students, parents/guardians, and employees. He/she shall provide training and information on the scope and use of the policy and complaint procedures and take other measures designed to increase the school community's understanding of the requirements of law related to discrimination. The County Superintendent or designee shall regularly review the implementation of the county office's nondiscrimination policies and practices and, as necessary, shall take action to remove any identified barrier to student access to or participation in the educational program. He/she shall report his/her findings and recommendations to the Board after each review.

Students who engage in unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, in violation of law, Board policy, or administrative regulation shall be subject to appropriate consequence or discipline, which may include suspension or expulsion for behavior that is severe or pervasive as defined in Education Code 48900.4. Any employee who permits or engages in prohibited discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.

#### Legal Reference:

#### **EDUCATION CODE**

200-262.4 – Prohibition of discrimination

48900.3 – Suspension or expulsion for act of hate violence

48900.4 – Suspension or expulsion for threats or harassment

48904 – Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct

48907 – Student exercise of free expression

48950 – Freedom of speech

48985 – Translation of notices

49020-49023 – Athletic programs

51500 – Prohibited instruction or activity

51501 – Prohibited means of instruction

60044 – Prohibited instructional materials

#### CIVIL CODE

1714.1 – Liability of parents/guardians for willful misconduct of

minor PENAL CODE

422.55 – Definition of hate crime

422.6 – Crimes, harassment

#### CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

432 – Student record

4600-4687 – *Uniform complaint procedures* 

4900-4965 – Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1681-1688 – Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972

12101-12213 – Title II equal opportunity for individuals with

disabilities UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29

794 – Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act

of 1973 UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

2000d-2000e-17 - Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964 as

amended 2000h-2-2000h-6 – Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964

6101-6107 – Age Discrimination Act of

1975 <u>CODE OF FEDERAL</u>

REGULATIONS, TITLE 28

35.107 – Nondiscrimination on basis of disability;

complaints <u>CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS</u>, <u>TITLE</u>

34

100. 3 – Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin

104.7 – Designation of responsible employee for Section 504

106.8 – Designation of responsible employee for Title IX

106.9 – Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex

#### **COURT DECISIONS**

Donovan v. Poway Unified School District, (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th

567 Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District, (2003) 324 F.3d

1130 Management Resources:

#### CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-

Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014

Final Guidance Regarding Transgender Students, Privacy, and Facilities,

March 2014 Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student

Success, 2011 FIRST AMENDMENT CENTER PUBLICATIONS

Public Schools and Sexual Orientation: A First Amendment Framework for Finding Common Ground, 2006

NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARD ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS

Dealing with Legal Matters Surrounding Students' Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity, 2004

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS

Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October

2010 Notice of Non-Discrimination, January 1999

**WEBSITES** 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Department of Education: http://cde.ca.gov

California Safe Schools Coalition:

http://www.casafeschools.org First Amendment Center:

http://www.firstamendmentcenter.org National School

Boards Association: http://www.nsba.org

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr

Policy Adopted: 4/8/2015 Tulare County Board of Education

Revised: Visalia, CA

# Form to Request a Change of Attendance and Options

State/Fed	State/Federal Enrollment Details (AB 699)  Form #: Tracking #:					
First Name:	Middle Name:	Last Nar	ne:	: Suffix:		
Birth City:	Birth State:	Birth Cou	ntry:	: Check here if student is foreign born and has been enrolled less than 3 cumulative years in the U.S.		
Name of Prev	rious School:		Address of Previous School:			
☐ in the same	Previous School Type (please select one):    Public School:					
Date first enrolled in the U.S.:	Date first enrolled in state:	1 this	Date first enrolled in District:  Date first enrolled i school:			
Grade first enrolled in District:		Grade first enrolled in this school:				
The information submitted on this form educational records including, without lin Title 2, Division 4, Part 27, Chapter 6.5 of Act (California Civil Code Section 1798 et I certify that all the statements  X  Parent Signature	nitation, the Family Educational f the California Education Code, t seq.) and Article 1, Section 1 of	l Rights and Pri beginning at Se the California	vacy Act of 1974 ection 49060 et s Constitution	(FERPA), as amende eq.; the California Info	d (20 U.S.C. § 123 ormation Practices	32g; 34 CFR Part 99);

# Dashboard Alternative School Status (DASS)

(check all that a	apply)			
Expelled (Ed. Code 48925[b]) including situations in which enforcement of the expulsion order was suspended (Ed. Code 48917)				
	Suspended (Ed Code 48925[d]) more than 10 days in a school year			
	Words of the court (WIC 601 or 602) or dependents of the court (WIC 200 or 654)			
	Pregnant and/or parenting			
Habitually truant (Ed. Code 48262) or habitually insubordinate and disorderly (Ed Code 48263), and whose attendance at the school is directed by a school attendance review board (SARB) or probation officer (Ed. Code 48263)				
Retained more than once in kindergarten through grade 8.				
	Recovered dropouts based on EC Section 52052.3(b) as students who: (1) are designated as dropouts pursuant to the exit and withdraw codes in the California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System (CALPADS), or (2) left school and were not enrolled in a school for a period of 180 days.			
	Students who are credit deficient (i.e., students who are one semester or more behind in the credits required to graduate on-time, per grade level, from the enrolling school's credit requirements)			
Students with a gap in enrollment (i.e., students who have not been in any school during the 45 days prior to enrollment in the current school where the 45 days does not include non-instructional days such as summer break, holiday break, off-track, and other days when a school is closed)				
Students with high level transiency (i.e., students who have been enrolled in more than two schools during the past academic year or have changed secondary schools more than two times since entering high school)				
Foster Youth (EC Section 42238.01[b])				
Homeless Youth				
APLUS+	Schools Home Survey			
	Does the student have access to a computer at home?			
Does the student have access to the Internet from home?		□ Yes □ No		
	How many times has the student's family moved in the past 12 months?			

#### California Department of Education

# Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP) Annual Notice

May 2023

Tulare County Office of Education La Sierra Military Academy

# Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP) Annual Notice 2025–2026

La Sierra Military Academy annually notifies our students, employees, parents or guardians of its students, the district advisory committee, school advisory committees, appropriate private school officials, and other interested parties of our Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP) process.

The UCP Annual Notice is available on our website.

We are primarily responsible for compliance with federal and state laws and regulations, including those related to unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying against any protected group, and all programs and activities that are subject to the UCP.

#### **Programs and Activities Subject to the UCP**

- · Accommodations for Pregnant and Parenting Pupils
- · Adult Education
- · After School Education and Safety
- · Agricultural Career Technical Education
- · Career Technical and Technical Education and Career Technical and Technical Training Programs
- · Child Care and Development Programs
- Compensatory Education
- · Consolidated Categorical Aid Programs
- Course Periods without Educational Content
- · Discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying against any protected group as identified under sections 200 and 220 and Section 11135 of the Government Code, including any actual or perceived characteristic as set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code, or on the basis of a person's association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics, in any program or activity conducted by an educational institution, as defined in Section 210.3, that is funded directly by, or that receives or benefits from, any state financial assistance.
- · Educational and graduation requirements for pupils in foster care, pupils who are homeless, pupils from military families and pupils formerly in Juvenile Court now enrolled in a school district
- · Every Student Succeeds Act
- · Local Control and Accountability Plans (LCAP)

- · Migrant Education
- · Physical Education Instructional Minutes
- · Pupil Fees
- · Reasonable Accommodations to a Lactating Pupil
- · Regional Occupational Centers and Programs
- · School Plans for Student Achievement
- · School Safety Plans
- School site Councils
- · State Preschool
- · State Preschool Health and Safety Issues in LEAs Exempt from Licensing

And any other state or federal educational program the State Superintendent of Public Instruction (SSPI) of the California Department of Education (CDE) or designee deems appropriate.

#### Filing a UCP Complaint

A UCP complaint shall be filed no later than one year from the date the alleged violation occurred.

For complaints relating to Local Control and Accountability Plans (LCAP), the date of the alleged violation is the date when the reviewing authority approves the LCAP or annual update that was adopted by our agency.

A pupil enrolled in any of our public schools shall not be required to pay a pupil fee for participation in an educational activity.

A pupil fee complaint may be filed with the principal of a school or our superintendent or their designee.

A pupil fee or LCAP complaint may be filed anonymously, that is, without an identifying signature, if the complainant provides evidence or information leading to evidence to support an allegation of noncompliance.

#### Responsibilities of La Sierra Military Academy

We shall post a standardized notice, in addition to this notice, with educational and graduation requirements for pupils in foster care, pupils who are homeless, pupils from military families and pupils formerly in Juvenile Court now enrolled in a school district.

We advise complainants of the opportunity to appeal an Investigation Report of complaints regarding programs within the scope of the UCP to the Department of Education (CDE).

We advise complainants of civil law remedies, including injunctions, restraining orders, or other remedies or orders that may be available under state or federal discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying laws, if applicable.

Copies of our UCP procedures shall be available free of charge.

# For UCP Complaints Regarding State Preschool Health and Safety Issues Pursuant to Section 1596.7925 of the California *Health and Safety Code* (HSC)

In order to identify appropriate subjects of state preschool health and safety issues pursuant to Section 1596.7925 of the California *Health and Safety Code (HSC)* a notice shall be posted in each California state preschool program classroom in each school in our agency.

The notice is in addition to this UCP annual notice and addresses parents, guardians, pupils, and teachers of (1) the health and safety requirements under Title 5 of the California *Code of Regulations* (5 *CCR*) that apply to California state preschool programs pursuant to *HSC* Section 1596.7925, and (2) the location at which to obtain a form to file a complaint.

#### **Contact Information**

Complaints within the scope of the UCP are to be filed with the person responsible for processing complaints:

Dedi Somavia
Assistant Superintendent Human Resources
Tulare County Office of Education
6200 S. Mooney Blvd Visalia, California 93277
(559) 733-6306
Dedi.Somavia@tcoe.org

The above contact is knowledgeable about the laws and programs that they are assigned to investigate in *La Sierra Military Academy*.

#### Filing a Williams Complaint in the LEA 2025-2026

La Sierra Military Academy

# For Filing Williams Complaints

California *Education Code (EC)* Section 35186 created a procedure for the filing of complaints concerning deficiencies related to instructional materials, conditions of facilities that are not maintained in a clean or safe manner or in good repair, and teacher vacancy or misassignment. The complaint and response are public documents as provided by statute. Complaints may be filed anonymously. However, if you wish to receive a response, you must provide the following contact information.

Is a response requested – yes or no?	
Name:	
Mailing Address:	
Phone Number:	
Issue of complaint:	

#### **Textbooks and Instructional Materials**

A pupil, including an English learner, does not have standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials or state-adopted or district-adopted textbooks or other required instructional materials to use in class.

A pupil does not have access to textbooks or instructional materials to use at home or after school. This does not require two sets of textbooks or instructional materials for each pupil.

Textbooks or instructional materials are in poor or unusable condition, have missing pages, or are unreadable due to damage.

A pupil was provided photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or instructional materials to address a shortage of textbooks or instructional materials.

## **Facility Conditions**

A condition poses an urgent or emergency threat to the health or safety of students or staff, including: gas leaks, nonfunctioning heating, ventilation, fire sprinklers or air-conditioning systems, electrical power failure, major sewer line stoppage, major pest or vermin infestation, broken windows or exterior doors or gates that will not lock and that pose a security risk, abatement of hazardous materials previously undiscovered that pose an immediate threat to pupils or staff, structural damage creating a hazardous or uninhabitable condition, and any other emergency conditions the school district determines appropriate.

A school restroom has not been maintained or cleaned regularly, is not fully operational and has not been stocked at all times with toilet paper, soap, and paper towels or functional hand dryers.

The school has not kept all restrooms open during school hours when pupils are not in classes and has not kept a sufficient number of restrooms open during school hours when pupils are in classes.

## **Teacher Vacancy or Misassignment**

Teacher vacancy - A semester begins, and a teacher vacancy exists. (A teacher vacancy is a position to which a single designated certificated employee has not been assigned at the beginning of the year for an entire year or, if the position is for a one-semester course, a position to which a single designated certificated employee has not been assigned at the beginning of a semester for an entire semester.)

Teacher misassignment - A teacher who lacks credentials or training to teach English learners is assigned to teach a class with more than 20 percent English learner pupils in the class.

Teacher misassignment - A teacher is assigned to teach a class for which the teacher lacks subject matter competency.

subject matter competency.
The complainant adds the following information:
Date of Problem:
Location of problem:
School name:
Address:
Room number:
Course or Grade Level and Teacher Name:
Describe complaint in detail. You may include as much text as necessary:
File this complaint with the principal of the school or his/her designee in which the complaint occurred:
Location:
Address:
A complaint about problems beyond the authority of the principal shall be forwarded within 1 working days to the appropriate school district official for resolution.

0

# **List of Pesticide Products**

Dear Parent or Guardian,

The Healthy Schools Act of 2000 (as amended by Assembly Bill 2865, Chapter 865, Statues of 2006) requires all California school districts and child day care centers to notify parents and guardians of pesticide use that can be applied in schools. You can find more information regarding the use of pesticides via the California Department of Pesticide Regulation's website at cdpr.ca.gov/docs/schoolipm/. If you have any questions, please contact La Sierra Military Academy at (559) 733-6963.

Sincerely,

, Jose Bedolla, Ed.D.

Principal, La Sierra Military Academy

Terminix utilizes the following pesticides for Pest Prevention at La Sierra Military Academy:

**Emulsifiable Concentrate** 

Suspend Polyzone

Demand CS Insecticide

ARTICLE 4. Healthy Schools Act of 2000 [17608 - 17614]

(Article 4 added by Stats. 2000, Ch. 718, Sec. 1.)



#### 2025-2026 La Sierra Military Academy Minimum and Staff Development Days Schedule

Minimum Day Dismissal is at 12:55 pm.

Minimum Day/Staff Development- August 20th, 2025

Minimum Day/Staff Development- September 17th, 2025

Parent Conferences/Minimum Day- October 8th and 9th, 2025

Minimum Day/Staff Development- October 10th, 2025

Minimum Day/Staff Development- October 22, 2025

Minimum Day/Staff Development- November 12th, 2025

Minimum Day/Staff Development- December 17th, 2025

Minimum Day/Closing of Fall Semester- December 19th, 2025

Minimum Day/Staff Development- January 21, 2026

Minimum Day/Staff Development- February 18th, 2026

Parent Conferences/Minimum Day- March 18th and 19th, 2026

Minimum Day/Staff Development- March 20th, 2026

Minimum Day- March 27th, 2026

Minimum Day/Staff Development- April 22, 2026

Minimum Day/Staff Development- May 13th, 2026

Minimum Day/Promotion/Graduation- May 28th, 2026

Minimum Day/Closing of the Spring Semester- May 29th, 2026

# All In- Health Care for All Families Fact Sheet

Health Information					
Medications taken by student at School	l or at Home (written authorization from doctor required for medi-	cations taken at school):			
	Other Health Condition:				
What action is to be taken if student has a complication due to his/her allergic condition or other health condition (Please be specific):					
Known Conditions: (check all that apply)					
Asthma	81	Glasses to be worn at all times			
Bee Sting Allergy	— The wind of the manual deleter in the manu				
Diabetes Epilepsy	8	Wears contact lenses			
Heart Condition Nut		Wears glasses			
Allergy Seizures					
Other (Please Specify Below)					
☐ Allergy Seizures ☐ Other (Please Specify Below) ☐					
Ц					
Insurance					
Health Insurance Carrier:	Insurance ID or Policy #:	Hospital Preference			
Physician	•	•			
Name of Physician:	Address:	Phone:			
	Vision (list Dr):				
	Hearing (list Dr):				

#### **Parent Signature**

In case of accident or other emergency, if parent or guardian cannot be reached, I hereby authorize a representative of the school to make such arrangements as he/she considers necessary for my child to receive medical or hospital care, including necessary transportation.

Under such circumstances, I further authorize the physician named above to undertake such acts and treatment of my child as he/she considers necessary. In the event said doctor is not available, I authorize such care and treatment to be performed by any licensed physician or surgeon.

# **Directory Information Opt-Out Form 2025-2026**

This form provides parents and guardians the opportunity to opt their student out of the release of directory information. Please read each section of the form carefully. If you have any questions about this form, please contact the District's site principal, **Jose Bedolla at (559) 733-6963.** 

Pursuant to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and the California Education Code, the District may release directory information to certain persons or organizations, as specified in this annual notice, when it is requested. Directory information may be released to list potential recipients of directory information (e.g., law enforcement agencies, employers and prospective employers, news media) and may include student's name, address, telephone number, date of birth, email address, major field of study, participation in officially recognized activities and sports, weight and height of members of athletic teams, dates of attendance, degrees and awards received, most recent educational agency or institution attended. In the case of students who have been identified as having special needs or homeless, no material can be released without parent or guardian consent.

Please note: This is an OPTIONAL form. The form should only be returned to the school if you wish to opt your child <u>out</u> of one of these areas.

If you do not want your child's directory information released, please check the box below. This opt-

School:

Page 60

Phone:

Grade:



To: Parents and Guardians of Students of La Sierra Military Academy

From: Jose Bedolla, Site Principal

**Subject: California Law Regarding Safe Storage of Firearms** 

The purpose of this memorandum is to inform and to remind parents and legal guardians of all students of La Sierra Military Academy of their responsibilities for keeping firearms out of the hands of children as required by California law. There have been many news reports of children bringing firearms to school. In many instances, the child obtained the firearm(s) from his or her home. These incidents can be easily prevented by storing firearms in a safe and secure manner, including keeping them locked up when not in use and storing them separately from ammunition.

To help everyone understand their legal responsibilities, this memorandum spells out California law regarding the storage of firearms. Please take some time to review this memorandum and evaluate your own personal practices to assure that you and your family are in compliance with California law.

- With very limited exceptions, California makes a person criminally liable for keeping any firearm, loaded or unloaded, within any premises that are under their custody and control where that person knows or reasonably should know that a child is likely to gain access to the firearm without the permission of the child's parent or legal guardian, and the child obtains access to the firearm and thereby (1) causes death or injury to the child or any other person; (2) carries the firearm off the premises or to a public place, including to any preschool or school grades kindergarten through twelfth grade, or to any school-sponsored event, activity, or performance; or (3) unlawfully brandishes the firearm to others.<sup>1</sup>
  - Note: The criminal penalty may be significantly greater if someone dies or suffers great bodily injury as a result of the child gaining access to the firearm.
- With very limited exceptions, California also makes it a crime for a person to negligently store or leave any firearm, loaded or unloaded, on their premises in a location where the person knows or reasonably should know that a child is likely to gain access to it without the permission of the child's parent or legal guardian, unless reasonable action is taken to secure the firearm against access by the child, even where a minor never actually accesses the firearm.<sup>2</sup>

Page 61

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> See California Penal Code sections 25100 through 25125 and 25200 through 25220.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> See California Penal Code section 25100(c).

- In addition to potential fines and terms of imprisonment, as of January 1, 2020, a gun owner found criminally liable under these California laws faces prohibitions from possessing, controlling, owning, receiving, or purchasing a firearm for 10 years.<sup>3</sup>
- Finally, a parent or guardian may also be civilly liable for damages resulting from the discharge of a firearm by that person's child or ward.<sup>4</sup>

**Note:** Your county or city may have additional restrictions regarding the safe storage of firearms.

Thank you for helping to keep our children and schools safe. Remember that the easiest and safest way to comply with the law is to keep firearms in a locked container or secured with a locking device that renders the firearm inoperable.

Sincerely,

, Jose Bedolla, Ed.D.

Principal, La Sierra Military Academy

Date published: July 30, 2025 California Department of Education

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> See California Civil Code Section 29805.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> See California Civil Code Section 1714.3.



#### Dear Parent/Guardian,

This form verifies acknowledgement on behalf of La Sierra Military Academy that you have been provided access to review the district's Annual Notification Plan for the 2025-2026 school year. Your signature below verifies that the district has provided all educational partners with a description of the district's policies and procedures for continual school improvement measures for capacity building towards student achievement and safety measures.

Parent Signature:
Date:
Estimado Padre / Tutor,
Este formulario verifica el reconocimiento en nombre de La Sierra Military Academy de que se le ha proporcionado acceso para revisar el Plan de notificación anual del distrito para el año escolar 2025-2026. Su firma a continuación verifica que el distrito ha proporcionado a todos los socios educativos una descripción de las políticas y procedimientos del distrito para las medidas de mejora continua de la escuela para el desarrollo de capacidades hacia el rendimiento estudiantil y las medidas de seguridad.
Firma de los Padres:
Fecha:
<del></del>